N

From: 39(2)(3)

Sent: Wednesday, 30 June 2021 8:48 am
To:
Subject: RE: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

Thanks RAGLS)

The site is adjacent DOC reserve, and a well-used DOC walking track goes through the site.

The application details aspiration to enhance ecological values, DOC would suggest inter-planting'more suitable native
plants within the regenerating manuka/kanuka forest.

The site will be visible from the road and the DOC reserve and walking track. Visual effeets'should be considered.

Mana whenua have expressed a range of concerns regarding the application and DO€E would support the views of local
hapii being considered and appropriately addressed.

Thanks,

s9(2)(a)

Jepartment of C« vaton

Bay of Islands Office

34 Landing Rd, PO Box 128, Kerikeri 0245
Ws9(2)(a)
From: JVAIE))

Sent: Tuesday, 29 June 2021 12:55 pm

To: SYIVAIE)) s9(2)(a) [CEEEEENArE

Subject: RE: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6,'Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

Hi 59(2)(a)

At this stage, no assessment/of affected parties has been completed. The application was circulated to DOC, Heritage
NZ, and iwi as parties\who may have an interest in the application — comments received will help me decided whether |
need additional information, or whether there are any interested parties.

As such, justléoking for general feedback from DOC at this stage.

Give,mea bell if you want to discuss further.

Cheets,



From: EJVAIE)) EIAE) I oc.covt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 29 June 2021 12:52 pm
s9(2)(a)
Subject: RE: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

[THs9(2)(a)

Does FNDC consider DOC as an affected party, as an adjacent neighbour?

s9(2)(a)

s9(2)(a)

De vation

Bay of Islands Office
34 Landing Rd, PO Box 128, Kerikeri 0245

W-<9(2)(a)

From: 89(2)(8)
Sent: Tuesday, 29 June 2021 10:32 am

To: SVAIE)) [PVl cloc.covt.nz>

Subject: RE: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

Thanks I’'m hoping to issue a s92 letter (if required) by close of business tomorrow so if you were able to get
comments through to me before then that would be great!

Cheers,

1
I S —— |

89(2)(8) doc.govi'nZ»

Sent: Tuesday, 29 June 2021 10:29 am
To: EIME))
Subject: RE: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6,°Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

G11s9(2)(@)
We will do - SIPAIE)) . I will endeavour to get comments back to you in the next day,

community DOeF

Departmgpt 6 Jonservation
Bay of Islgpt¥s Offic
34 Ldndin® Rd, PO Box 128, Kerikeri 0245
s9(2)(a)

From: 89(2)(8)
Sent: Monday, 28 June 2021 1:52 pm
To: Lara McDonald 89(2)(8) doc.govt.nz>

Cc: Planning Support <Planning.Support@fndc.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

2



Hl S9(2)(a))

Does DOC have any comments on this application?

Cheers,

_-l_ﬁ



From:

Sent: Wednesday, 23 June 2021 9:43 am

To:

Subject: Fwd: RE: Subject: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

More context on Mr Batchelor.
Sent from Workspace ONE Boxer

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: "SEIVAIEY;

Date: 23/06/2021 9:29 am
Subject: RE: Subject: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

s9(2)(a) @fndc.govt.nz> SIVAIEVE SEIAIED) s9(2)(a)

@fndc.govt.nz>

Thank you.

s9(2)(a)

Patukeha hapu

From: SIEIVA]E)) s9(2)(a) @fpde:govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 22 June 2021 4:27 PM

1s9(2) @) 59(2)(2)

@fndc.govt.nz>
doc.govt.nz>;

doc.govt.nz>; SIVAIEY;

Subject: RE: Subject: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

Kia ora All,

Thank you for yeur reSponses. | will make sure to pass them onto the processing planner for this application, 3IGIEY

Below is alSoa link to the application on our website.

https#/www.fndc.govt.nz/Our-Services/Resource-Consents/View-resource-consent-applications/RC-202106-2200523-
RMALUC?BestBetMatch=2200523|9ffc8e38-a690-4ec0-aaba-2b14b4c37120|e97c043c-dc40-4653-91a0-
2debcdb22936/en-AU

Kind regards,

s9(2)(a)
s9(2)(a)



) District Services, Far North District Council | 24-hour Contact Centre 0800 920 029
DDIFEIAIEY Ws9(2)(a) fndc.govt.nz

Website Facebook | LinkedIn Careers

From: SIA]E)) 1s9(2)(a)
Sent: Tuesday, 22 June 2021 4:18 PM
s9(2)(a) @fndc.govt.nz>; FICIEN

doc.govt.nz>; IAIE))

@fndc.govt.nz>
doc.govt.nz>;

Subject: RE: Subject: 2200523-RMALUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

CAUTION: This email originated from outside Far North District Council.
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Kia ora M@IEY
Not sure if Patukeha has a copy of this application, could you send me meré information?

Nga mihi

From: SEIAIE))

Sent: Tuesday, 22 June 2021 3:38 PM
@fndc.govt.nz X CAIEY) fndc.govt.nz>
doc.govt.nz>; doc.govt.nz>; IEAIE)

Subject: Subject: 2200523-RMALEUC - Lot 6, Rawhiti Road, Russell 0272

Kia ora RIQIEY

This note is to informyyeu that Ngati Kuta and the Hauai Trust together with community land shareholders are affected
parties to this application and object to its consent.

The area in.qdestion is zoned outstanding landscape under the District Plan. This same area is being assessed by the
Dept of Hefitage & Culture as a place of historical and social significance. It is also connected to the significant social
capital of Maori which includes all the waterways and nature forests out to Cape Brett and down into the Russell State
Forest.By just treating kanuka and pohutukawa trees as scrub to be cleared and make way for exotic fruit trees smacks
of colonial exploitation and denial where nature is subservient to human self-gratification.

This will not do as we Ngati Kuta are stepping into the Environment Court in July to fight for the protection of fauna and
flora on the lands and coastal environs around Te Rawhiti and the Bay of Islands including the applicants' surrounds.
Getting confronted with this slash and burn application from a part-time resident is disappointing. Mr Batchelor is
renowned for retrospective consenting as his way of avoidance and paying a soft fine to get what he wants.



By allowing this consent to be granted makes FNDC, NRC and DOC complicit in beating their own rules of environmental
protection of this outstanding landscape which connects to the whole Bay of Islands nature coastline. Mr Batchelor has
already cleared native bush on his land to plant fruit trees and hapu are reluctantly living with it but adding to the pain
in a socially and culturally sensitive area is unacceptable particularly as we are all trying to work within the new SNA
rules of which this application sits.

Can you please come back to me that the consenting team has received and lodged this objection? And if a full social @
and cultural impact assessment rebuttal is required from Ngati Kuta hapu.
Nga mihi

s9(2)(a) )
N

O

Ngati Kuta RMU

This email message and any attachment(s) is intended solely for the addressee(s)

named above. The information it contains may be classified and may be legally

privileged. Unauthorised use of the message, or the information it contains, O
may be unlawful. If you have received this message by mistake please call the \
sender immediately on 64 4 8940100 or notify us by return email and erase the

original message and attachments. Thank you.

The Ministry for Primary Industries accepts no responsibility for changes @

made to this email or to any attachments after transmission from the office.

~

A\

Get it done online at your convenience, visit our website - www.fndc. ovt n

Attention: The information contained in this email (including any attac |s intended solely for the addressee(s). It is confidential and may be legally
privileged. If you have received this email in error you must not us dlsclose or distribute it or any information in it. Please simply notify the sender and
delete or destroy all copies of the email immediately. Unless fo tated this e-mail and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of the Far North
District Council. The Far North District Council accepts no resp for any interception of, or changes to, our email after it leaves us. We do not accept
respons bility for any viruses or similar carried with our ema‘ effects our email may have on the recipients computer system or network.

Far North District Council | Te Kaunihera o Tai Toker
Ph. 09 401 5200 | Fax. 09 401 2137 | Email. ask.us
Address. Memorial Avenue, Private Bag 752, K

Please consider the environment before printing t

(/

This email message and any attE ) is intended solely for the addressee(s)

named above. The inform alns may be classified and may be legally
privileged. Unauthorised @ e message, or the information it contains,
may be unlawful. If you h

ceived this message by mistake please call the
sender immediately, 4 8940100 or notify us by return email and erase the

original messag@ chments. Thank you

The Ministry%’ ary Industries accepts no responsibility for changes
made to t?e\ or to any attachments after transmission from the office.
Q)’@




Out of scope

From:

Sent: Friday, 6 December 2019 12:15
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Tena koe3A¥AlE)]

| agree that there is protected access by the means you have noted, however physical access on the£liff top esplanade
reserve from aerial photo coverage appears to be sited at beach level --not on the cliff top.

Establishing the peg locations of the DOC reserve boundary’s by legal survey should sort outithese apparent mismatches

(if any).

Kia ora

From: SSIPAIEY]

Sent: Friday, 6 December 2019 11:21 a.m.
doc.govt.nz>;

doc.govt.nz>

Subject: Re: Investigation into hauai 2G3

$39(2)(ba)(1)




s9(2)(ba)(l)

s9(2)(a)




Out of scope

From:

Sent: Thursday, 21 November 2019 1:44 pm
To:

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

"

| have saved this email plus 3 attachments into DOCcm.
The email is:
https://docecm.doc.govt.nz/wee/faces/wecdoc?dDocName=DOC-6135164

Attachments:

MB 139, 163 14 Bay of Islands
DOC-6135161

MB 383-386,388, 15 Tokerau
DOC-6135162

MB 30-33 Appellate Court
DOC-6135163

An interesting outcome!

From: justice.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 21 November 2019 12:31 p.m.

doc.govt.nz>

doc.govt.nz>; S VAIE))

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai’2G3

Tena koe AAEY koutou ma,

Thank you for sending the,information through yesterday. Based on what you have provided | have been able to locate
some court minutes which may assist this case.

The minutes aré attached in 3 lots. They all relate to an application to the court to confirm the alienation of Hauai 2G3
to Mr Thomséon,

The first hearing was held on 20 February 1935 and is recorded at 14 Bay of Islands minute book 139, 163-164. Folio 139
refers'to that area (comprising Hauai 2G3) being the only access between other subdivisions. At folio 163, the judge
confirms that he held an inspection of the land. The judge describes the lay of the land and makes reference to the
urGpa (Hauai 2E) and access between two well populated portions of Rawhiti Settlement. There is also mention of
access to the block runs along the back of Ria Paaka’s section and would need to be fenced. The matter was adjourned.

The matter was back before the court on 17 May 1935 and is recorded at 15 Tokerau minute book 383. At folio 383, Mr
Bloomfield (acting for the purchaser Mr Thomson) states that he has been informed that the purchaser has arranged
with the Natives of the Settlement to form a roadway along the front of the block to give access to the other Native land

1



beyond...He (the purchaser) will also put in a path to the urupa. At folio 386, Mr Thomson is addressing the Court where
he says the following: The resident natives have all agreed to help me to make a right of way or road above high water
mark. 9 feet above spring tide...the track could be 9 ft wide to the cemetery. The Natives can fence it if they wish. There
will be no difficulty about this access. At folio 388 the court refused confirmation on the grounds that the alienation is
contrary to the interests of the Natives alienating.

Mr Thomson appealed the decision. That application was heard at Auckland on 18 March 1936 and is recorded at 12
Appellate Auckland District minute book 30-33 . At folio 31 Mr Bloomfield stated...as to the right of way we agreed to
give it. The appeal resulted in the lower court decision being overturned and confirmation of the alienation being given.

Concerning a hearing on 24 June 1964 where the subdivision of Hauai 2G3 was approved — | have not been-able to
locate any court minutes that relate to this matter. It is likely that this matter was dealt with by the Bay jof Tslands
County Council as it would have sought the approval of a subdivision of European land.

| hope this information assists you in your endeavours. Please advise if there is anything furtheryou’may require.

Nga mihi

M| Maori Land Court | Taitokerau District

Ministry of Justice | Taht o te Ture

s9(2)(a)

L2 Manaia House Building | 41 Rathbone Street | DXBox*AX10086 | Whangarei

ERIBIEN  stice.covt.nz | maorilandcourt.goytng

“He pou herenga tangata, he pou herenga whensgs\he pou whare koérero”




Out of scope

From:

Sent: Wednesday, 20 November 2019 10:45 am
To:

Subject: RE: Investigation into Hauai 2G3

Hi

Yes, | agree on that reflection.

Hopefully the Minute books will establish the conversation and have a record of the walkway as kngyn at the time.

From: doc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 20 November 2019 9:12 a.m.
To: doc.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Ms9C)a)

This seems to be useful and has gone to it would have savedws,all a bit of time if they gave us that information
initially, anyway we will see what comes from it.

Cheers

!epa! |men| 0‘ donservallon - l e !apa !!aw’!al

Bay of Islands Office
34 Landing Road, Kerikeri 0230
PH: 09 407 0300

Kia piki te oranga o te ao tufoa,.i roto i te ngatahitanga, ki Aotearoa.
To work with others to in€Crease the value of conservation for New Zealanders.

www.doc.govt.nz

From: SIVAIECY;
Sent: Wednesday,20 November 2019 3:54 a.m.

To: doc.govt.nz>; '|ustice.govt.nz;_ <-doc.govt.nz>
Cc:

Subjéct:{Investigation into hauai 2G3

s9(2)(ba)(l)




s9(2)(ba)(1)




Out of scope

From: - _justice.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 21 November 2019 12:31 pm

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Attachments: Court minutes - 14 Bay of Islands MB 139 and 163.pdf; Court minutes - 15 Tokerau MB 383-386,
388.pdf; Court minutes - 12 Appellate Court Auckland District MB 30-33.pdf

Tena koeBEIMIE) koutou ma,

Thank you for sending the information through yesterday. Based on what you have provided | have'been able to locate
some court minutes which may assist this case.

The minutes are attached in 3 lots. They all relate to an application to the court to confitm'the alienation of Hauai 2G3
to Mr Thomson.

The first hearing was held on 20 February 1935 and is recorded at 14 Bay of Islahds minute book 139, 163-164. Folio 139
refers to that area (comprising Hauai 2G3) being the only access between‘other subdivisions. At folio 163, the judge
confirms that he held an inspection of the land. The judge describes the lay of the land and makes reference to the
urupa (Hauai 2E) and access between two well populated portions.ofRawhiti Settlement. There is also mention of
access to the block runs along the back of Ria Paaka’s section andwould need to be fenced. The matter was adjourned.

The matter was back before the court on 17 May 1935 and-is recorded at 15 Tokerau minute book 383. At folio 383, Mr
Bloomfield (acting for the purchaser Mr Thomson) states that he has been informed that the purchaser has arranged
with the Natives of the Settlement to form a roadway. along the front of the block to give access to the other Native land
beyond...He (the purchaser) will also put in a path'tg the urupa. At folio 386, Mr Thomson is addressing the Court where
he says the following: The resident natives have'dll agreed to help me to make a right of way or road above high water
mark. 9 feet above spring tide...the track could be 9 ft wide to the cemetery. The Natives can fence it if they wish. There
will be no difficulty about this access. At€olio 388 the court refused confirmation on the grounds that the alienation is
contrary to the interests of the Natiyes/alienating.

Mr Thomson appealed the decision. That application was heard at Auckland on 18 March 1936 and is recorded at 12
Appellate Auckland District thinute book 30-33 . At folio 31 Mr Bloomfield stated...as to the right of way we agreed to
give it. The appeal resultéd in'the lower court decision being overturned and confirmation of the alienation being given.

Concerning a hearing on' 24 June 1964 where the subdivision of Hauai 2G3 was approved — | have not been able to
locate any court'minutes that relate to this matter. It is likely that this matter was dealt with by the Bay of Islands
County Council as/it would have sought the approval of a subdivision of European land.

| hope this irnformation assists you in your endeavours. Please advise if there is anything further you may require.

Nga nmiihi

| Maori Land Court | Taitokerau District

Ministry of Justice | Taha o te Ture
s9(2)(a)



L2 Manaia House Building | 41 Rathbone Street | DX Box AX10086 | Whangarei

_]ustice.govt.nz | maorilandcourt.govt.nz

“He pou herenga tangata, he pou herenga whenua, he pou whare kérero”
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—— : THAUAI 2 G 3.

Appeal against decision of The Native Land Court
refusing confirmation of transfer of this land to
Thomas Thomsone

i DECISION. C&’
) This appeal is brought in pursuance of Section 1 ;
of The Natlve Purposes Act 1935

It apoears from the records of the proceeding n
- the Native Land Court that all the owners of thesland were
desirous of selling their interests in it to ¢ plicant
Thomson., The Court however was moved by Réne-te Wana Paora
a relative of the owners, but not herself a /to refuse
confirmation and after a somewhat lengthy he g 1t decided
to do so upon the ground that the alien s contrary to
the interests of the natives allenati e block contains
‘under 12 acres and the owners number /6 None has lived on
. the land for many years and they ag attered in various

places in the North Island, end a erftly the land is not .
likely to be a material means of ‘support to them. Under the
circumstances disclosed at t ng of the application we
‘are unable to see that the ali ion 1s contrary to the
interests of the natives alienating. No adequate reason

for a decision on the g iven arose out of the evidence
led before the Court nox e surrounding circumstances

show that the alienat s contrary to the intereats of
the natives alienati in the meaning of Paragraph (b) 1
Subsection 1 of S \ 7% of The Native Land Act 1931, !

as been raised in respect of the other
ch the Court is required to satiefy itself
onfirmation.

ourt therefore orders that the alienation be
bject to payment of the consideration to The
trict Maori- Land Board, less the sum of £6 paid
a8 deposit 1f supported by receipts.

4
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Out of scope

From: 39(2)(3)

Sent: Wednesday, 20 November 2019 12:31 pm
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Hi,

This is the site we visited first during Tuia 250 — just confirming.

| agree, we need to move on this.

What is the status of the land that the traditional walkway is on —is it esplanade Reserve?

From memory you said the land owner had a survey done — we need to be sure that the-survey is correct. Is it possible
to do an Assyst request to the GIS team to ensure the boundary pegs are in the right place?

From: doc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 20 November 2019 9:16 a.m.
ICAs9(2)(a) doc.govt.nz>
Cc: doc.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Please see below for your Information, just to let you know this is simmering in the background, we have had a litigation

comment from local hapuSJVAIE)] -Ngati Kuta) in an email to me if this is not rectified.

Not really my forte, more of a stat/land management issue but happy to help where required.

Kind regards

!epa! Imen| 0‘ ionservallon - ' e !apa !!aw!!al

Bay of Islands Office
34 Landing Road, Kerikeri.0230
PH: 09 407 0300

Kia piki te granga o te ao turoa, i roto i te ngatahitanga, ki Aotearoa.
To work @ith/Others to increase the value of conservation for New Zealanders.

wwy.dog.govt.nz

ARERS9(2)(a)
Sent: Wednesday, 20 November 2019 3:54 a.m.
To: doc.govt.nz>;
Cc:

Subject: Investigation into hauai 2G3

'|ustice.govt.nz;_ <-doc.govt.nz>




$9(2)(ba)(i)




Out of scope

From:

Sent: Thursday, 10 September 2020 10:04 am
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

The hapu interest group SIVAIE)) responded to my email to S

DOC-6156778
-which led to- getting the surveyors to define where the walkway might have been etc.

If after reading the email correspondence, | can contact Ra@A if you’d prefer that!

From:

Sent: Thursday, 10 September 2020 9:49 a.m.
To: doc.govt.nz>
Cc: doc.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

F1s9(2)(a)

The relevant message was dated 21 November 2019 and included in the attachments from
I had saved it as:

DOC-6135164

The attachments in the message are:

Court Minutes 14 Bay of Islands MB 139 & 163:D0€-6135161

Court Minutes 15 Taitokerau MB 383-386, 388“D0OC-6135162

Court Minutes -12 Appellate Court Auckland MB 30-33: DOC-6135163

I replied to BA&AR and he respondedto!me and my further response noting some options from a statutory land
perspective is:

All email trail: DOC-6153517

| trust this is off assistance to the query?
s9(2)(a) would be able to supply contact details for @@ if you need to have a discussion.

Hamiltopn’Service Centre



From:
Sent: Wednesday, 9 September 2020 8:52 p.m.

To: doc.govt.nz>

Cc: doc.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Investigation into hauai 2G3

G11s9(2)(a)
As | recall, at the lower court the owner agreed with the walkway; however at the higher court for the alienation into

private ownership, the Court did not carry forward the owner agreement for the walkway. g€l provided options
there so | will check and email the message he gave. B2 now works for ML Court in Dunedin. e

Sent from Workspace ONE Boxer

On 9/09/2020 3:55 pm,_ -doc.govt.nz> wrote:
Kia ora i)

s9(2)(h)

Many thanks

Nga mihi

Nga mihi

s9(2)(a) i
sY(<Z)(a)

oia Matua

wwwiddc.govt.nz

“ Department of
‘ Coynservatbon
T Faged Aforria

= 4



e

Papataanuku Thrives

Te ora o Papatianuku “ Healthy nature
" Te ora o té Hapori : ‘( /. ' ‘Thriving communities

Te hunga Atawhai People who care

Sent: Friday, 6 December 2019 9:58 AM

justice.govt.nz>; SEIPAIE)]
doc.govt.nz>; FEIPAIE))
Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Tena koe RiRAR

My apologies for not reverting following your reply to mine.

s9(2)(a)

| appreciate very much this response, since it inforyns\the€ parties of any next steps that could potentially be pursued.

It would appear that from ‘common knowledge’/th& agreement of the former owner to a right of passage over the
property (folio 31 dated 1936) was physicallyputinto effect with such a walkway maintained by the users for pedestrian
purposes accessing the urupa. It is unfortunate-this walkway appears not to have been legally created.

Presentation of this Minute Book infortnation to any resource consent hearing could enable the territorial authority to
consider placing a consent notice that creates a legal instrument as | noted below [esplanade strip or access strip (an

RMA instrument-section 232 Resource Management Act 1991)] to formally protect this intention.

Nga mihi

Department{of C6nservation
Otepoti/Duredin Office

From: justice.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 22 November 2019 6:46 a.m.

To: -doc.govt.nz>; s9(2)(a)

3



“doc.govt.np; s9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3
Tena koe RAGKS

The matter that was before the court in 1935 was for the confirmation of an alienation. Although there is reference to
an agreement that the proposed right of way should remain on the land, there are a couple of ways that the right of
way is formalised. The court would either grant an order creating a right of way; or confirmation of the alienation is to
be subject to or conditional on the creation of a right of way.

| have not had opportunity to inspect the alienation agreement to ascertain whether it contains a condition-regarding
the creation of a right of way. Furthermore, although the minutes record an agreement between the native owners and
the purchaser concerning a right of way, the minutes are silent as to the granting of a right of way pursuant to the
Native Land Act 1931 and they are also silent as to a condition that the alienation is subject to the ereation of a right of
way.

Therefore, In the absence of a court order or conditions placed on the alienation agreement, the court registry is unable
to formally record the existence of a right of way against the block.

Nga mihi,

| Maori Land Court | Taitokerau District
Ministry of Justice | Taht o te Ture

s9(2)(a)

L2 Manaia House Building | 41 RathboneStreet | DX Box AX10086 | Whangarei

_]ustice.govt.nz | maoritandcourt.govt.nz

“He pou herenga tangata, he goyRerenga whenua, he pou whare kérero”

rorn: S SN .-
Sent: Thursday, 21 November 2019 1:32 p.m.

justice.govt.nz>; 89(2 )(a)
doc.govt.nz>; SEIPAIE))

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Tena koe

This s all'very helpful in understanding the basis for the creation of the walkway, it having been agreed to by Mr
Thomsén in the earlier alienation Court hearings.

While the decision to not alienate the land was overturned at the Appellate Court allowing the alienation to proceed,
folio 31 appears to record an agreement that the proposed right of way should remain on the land.
Correct me if | am wrong in this interpretation?

If this assumption is correct, would this interest need to be formally recorded on the property involved, and if so, would
that be undertaken by Maori Land Court property staff?



Out of scope

From: - _justice.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 21 November 2019 12:31 pm

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Investigation into hauai 2G3

Tena koe S4AEY koutou ma,

Thank you for sending the information through yesterday. Based on what you have provided | have lieen able to locate
some court minutes which may assist this case.

The minutes are attached in 3 lots. They all relate to an application to the court to confirm the alienation of Hauai 2G3
to Mr Thomson.

The first hearing was held on 20 February 1935 and is recorded at 14 Bay of Island$ minute book 139, 163-164. Folio 139
refers to that area (comprising Hauai 2G3) being the only access between other subdivisions. At folio 163, the judge
confirms that he held an inspection of the land. The judge describes the lay 6fthe land and makes reference to the
urupa (Hauai 2E) and access between two well populated portions of RawhitiSettlement. There is also mention of
access to the block runs along the back of Ria Paaka’s section and would need to be fenced. The matter was adjourned.

The matter was back before the court on 17 May 1935 and is recorded at 15 Tokerau minute book 383. At folio 383, Mr
Bloomfield (acting for the purchaser Mr Thomson) states that he has been informed that the purchaser has arranged
with the Natives of the Settlement to form a roadway along-the'front of the block to give access to the other Native land
beyond...He (the purchaser) will also put in a path to the urupa. At folio 386, Mr Thomson is addressing the Court where
he says the following: The resident natives have all dgreed to help me to make a right of way or road above high water
mark. 9 feet above spring tide...the track could be 9t wide to the cemetery. The Natives can fence it if they wish. There
will be no difficulty about this access. At folio, 388 the court refused confirmation on the grounds that the alienation is
contrary to the interests of the Natives alienating.

Mr Thomson appealed the decision., That\application was heard at Auckland on 18 March 1936 and is recorded at 12
Appellate Auckland District minuté beok 30-33 . At folio 31 Mr Bloomfield stated...as to the right of way we agreed to
give it. The appeal resulted in thellower court decision being overturned and confirmation of the alienation being given.
Concerning a hearing on24 June 1964 where the subdivision of Hauai 2G3 was approved — | have not been able to
locate any court minutesithat relate to this matter. It is likely that this matter was dealt with by the Bay of Islands
County Council as it would have sought the approval of a subdivision of European land.

| hope this information assists you in your endeavours. Please advise if there is anything further you may require.

Nga miti

| Maori Land Court | Taitokerau District
Ministry of Justice | Taha o te Ture

s9(2)(a)

L2 Manaia House Building | 41 Rathbone Street | DX Box AX10086 | Whangarei

_iustice.govt.nz | maorilandcourt.govt.nz

“He pou herenga tangata, he pou herenga whenua, he pou whare kérero”

1




From: SIPAIE))

Sent: Wednesday, 20 November 2019 11:21 a.m.

doc.govt.nz>
doc.govt.nz>;_ _justice.govt.nz>; 89(2)(6)

Subject: Re: Investigation into hauai 2G3

$9(2)(ba)(i)

Regards, S4#3IE)
On Wed, 20 Nov 2019, 10:32 AV RIS SR doc 2o t.nz> wrote:

Tena koe SAPAIE)

Thank you f6p supplying this information to me, s9(2)@) and-

It may\bepossible for a surveyor to establish landward survey peg locations of the two esplanade reserves, however it

is possible these points have been lost due to erosion of the cliff face.

The majority of esplanade reserve Lot 9 appears now (from aerial photos) to be at the base of the cliff extending out to

the high water mark .



If the walkway has been lost to erosion, then an option could be for creation of an esplanade strip or access strip (an
RMA instrument-section 232) set back from the top of the cliff face.

This requires agreement of the owner but is in favour of the Council which administers it. It would be subject to

conditions of access and maintenance as per the Act.

Otepoti/Dunedin Shared Services

ZRUEs9(2)(a)  s9(2)(a)

Sent: Wednesday, 20 November 2019 3:54 a.m.
To: doc.govt.nz>;
Cc:

Subject: Investigation into hauai 2G3

s9(2)(ba)(i

'|ustice.govt.nz;_ -doc.govt.nz>




$9(2)(ba)(1)

Regards,

s9(2)(a)
A

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or subject to
legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use, dissemination,
distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this email in error, please

notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and attachments. We apologise for the
inconvenience. Thank you.



s9(2)(ba)(1)

S

9(2)(ba)




Out of scope

From:
Sent: Tuesday, 10 December 2019 9:15 am
To:
Cc:
Subject:

RE: Investigation into Hauai 2G3-Assyst Request R169896
Hi
Thank you for this update.

1. If you need monies for a survey such as this, | understand the JSJEIE) hold a budget for one-off matters

such as this boundary survey.

You’d need to talk with the 39(2)(8) 189(2)(8) ) about how to access\up'to $S8K (approx.)

2. There may be other sources of money nationally contestible outside of operationghbudgets.

3. 1 will close off the Assyst Request if you decide the Request has been fulfilled?
It can be re-opened if there is further SLM advice needed to be obtained.

Let me know if you need anything more or to close off the Request?

Otepoti/Dunedin Shared Services

From: docigovt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 10 December 2019-8:46 a.m.

To: 5 doge.govt.nz>

@Hs9(2)(a) doc.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Investigatiomninto Hauai 2G3-Assyst Request R169896
Thanks for helging us with this ke

| was trying’not to have to spend our operational budget on another survey that | doubt will shed any new light on this

issue, | withtalk to SLBIEY and see if we want to close off the assyst request, if you receive any further correspondence
fromS4IEY | suggest forwarding on to us to reply.

Thanks again,

!epa! |men| 0‘ donservallon - l e !apa !law’!al

Bay of Islands Office



34 Landing Road, Kerikeri 0230
PH: 09 407 0300

Kia piki te oranga o te ao turoa, i roto i te ngatahitanga, ki Aotearoa.
To work with others to increase the value of conservation for New Zealanders.

www.doc.govt.nz

o N S o <o ==
Sent: Monday, 9 December 2019 8:15 a.m.
To: IVAIE)) doc.govt.nz>

Cc: 4 doc.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Investigation into Hauai 2G3-Assyst Request R169896

fsO(2)(a)

| expect will have kept you updated in respect of this matter?

| provided advice to durmg% term as 39(2)(8) throughout the course of investigating (via R169896)
status of tribal walkway over PCL (Oke Bay Scenic Reserve-Rawhiti Road) in order fénMaori to access the urupa.

Access to the original walkway is from Rawhiti Road via part of the Oke Bay scenigFeserve. However thence it ran along
the cliff top however there’s uncertainty if it lies on private land or on DOC’sRCL {esplanade reserve).

We have got to the stage that DOC needs to contract A SURVEYOR to rélogate the original peg locations of Oke Bay
Scenic reserve , from DP 51670 (DOC-6062529); that surveyor differeént from the surveyor contracted by the adjoining
landowner.

| trust you are able to arrange for this survey peg identification/iork to be done?

Yours sincerely

Otepoti/Dunedin Shared Services

ZRRS9(2)(a)
Sent: Friday, 6 December 2019 11:21 a.m.
doc.govt.nz>; doc.govt.nz>

Subject:.Re:Anvestigation into hauai 2G3

s9(2)(ba)(l




s9(2)(ba)(1)

Regards,
s9(2)(a)
From: doc.goytnz>

Date: Fr1, 6 Dec 2019, 9:57 AM
Subject: RE: Investigation into hauan2G3

Tena koe (il

My apotdggies for not reverting following your reply to mine.

s9(2)(a)

I appreciate very much this response, since it informs the parties of any next steps that could potentially be
pursued.



Title: Determining Boundary’s
between Oke bay Scenic Reserve

and private property
BOI Task Assigcnment

docCM: 3121156

To: S9(2)(a)

From: _
< SORNe)
Date: 10/06/19

Accountability | SEPAIE))

for decision:

Context
Hapu have requested that we investigate a\bcent land survey that was commissioned by Julian
Batchelor to determine accuracy of Its as they insist it is encroaching on a historical
pathway, they don’t accept that planade Reserve is in the correct location as shown on our
GIS mapping tool, Once we h e survey data we can run it past legal with the historical
data and get a ruling oa@or another.
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BOI TA Oke Bay boundaries - DOC-5966546



Purpose Establish recent survey by Julian Batchelor is accurate
Quantity e Sufficient information to determine accuracy of survey
Quality
e Estimated cost of request
e GPS shape files
e Mapping used for determining boundaries and any historical data/mapping-used
e Tools used and accuracy
e Reason why new survey pegs might not correlate with old boundary pegs?
Resources . - for additional context
e Assyst system for any advice re GIS mapping or legal
[}
Timing e 30/06/19 or earlier




Our ref : Ministerial -09-A-0041

29 January 2009

TO: Sam Lotu-liga
Member of Parliament

Maungakiekie

FROM: Hon Tim Groser
Minister of Conservation

SUBJECT: MINISTERIAL BRIEFING REQUEST 09-A-0041 - “JULIAN
BATCHELOR, OKE BAY, ACCESS TO CAPE BRETT WALK

You have asked for advice on where matters lie regarding Jdlian® Batchelor seeking
compensation for the Cape Brett Track passing through his propesty at Oke Bay, Bay of
Islands.

There are two questions that need to be answered:

1. Should the Department of Conservation Jéaseror otherwise pay for a track through
the Batchelor property?

2. What is the attitude of tangata whehua to alternative track arrangements and the
associated issue of access to a urupar

Background

The Department of Conservation administers Oke Bay Scenic Reserve [a small Reserve
adjacent to Oke Bay Bedch| and two larger more significant Reserves on the Cape Brett
Peninsula [map attached)].

Access to thedafger Reserves further out on Cape Brett is generally either via the Cape
Brett Trackj, starting on the Oke Bay Scenic Reserve, or by boat at Deep Water Cove.
Access £6.0Oke Bay Scenic Reserve is via a walkway that starts at the end of Rawhiti Rd.
The track then crosses Mr Batchelor’s property and continues along the Peninsula
thfough Maori land and public conservation land to Cape Brett.

The track to the end of Cape Brett is used by around 1000 trampers each year. Cape Brett
Walkways Ltd operates guided and non guided tours using the track and holds a
concession to use tracks that pass through conservation land. The Company has
affiliations to the Rawhiti 3B2 Trust Board and pays the Trust Board for the use of the
track that passes through Maori land.

DOCDM-355838/jph




When the prvate land at the start of the track came up for sale earlier this year the
Department sought funding through the Nature Heritage Fund to purchase the property.
The application was unsuccessful.

Should the Department of Conservation lease or otherwise pay for a track through
the Batchelor property?

The walking track (aprox 200 metres) through Mr Bachelor’s property gives access from
the Oke Bay Scenic Reserve track to the Cape Brett track. Walking beyond this point'to
Cape Brett involves crossing a significant amount of Maori land where the approval of
the landowners and payment of an access fee is required. In these circumstances paying
more than a token amount for the right of access through Mr Batchelors propeity seems
mappropriate.

My staff have investigated the possibility of realigning the start of the track away from Mr
Batchelors property. Unfortunately the land is steep makifigy.tlie formation of an
alternative track extremely difficult.

Another option considered was forming a route alorg‘the coastline. This was not
considered feasible because at spring tide, or wher théfe is a significant onshore wind,
there 1s virtually no flat land to walk on. The roelsaplatform visitors would walk on can
also become slippery and an area of Maon land ‘that would need to be crossed contains
significant wahi tapu sites.

There 1s alternative walking access te \Cape Brett via a public walking track that passes
through public conservation land at W hangamumu. This alternative route adds two hours
to the walk to Cape Brett howewex(it a scenic coastal route.

What is the attitude of fangata whenua to alternative track arrangements and the
associated issue of access to an urupa?

My staff met witl{ SSIPAIE) [a key contact from Patukeha Hapu and a Trustee on
the Rawhiti 3B2/Trust]. SACUCY has lived in the area for many years and is very familiar

with the tra€k and its history.

SEBICY ‘explained that the existing track through Mr Batchelor’s property is of great
culfiisal significance to Maori. It is a traditional pathway that has existing for hundreds of
$ears’and leads from the urupa at Rawhiti to many significant wahi tapu sites and maunga.
AWhilst not speaking for all Maori who have interest in the area, |Jll said it is likely that any
realignment of the traditional pathway would meet with a high level of resistance from the
Hapu of Patukeha and Ngati Kuta. The Hapu would not support the alternative access
option of going along the beach above high tide then through Maori land as there are
caves and it 1s another urupa on this route.

SEPIC) went further to explain that there is another track which was cut some time ago
trom the School on Rawhiti Road through Maori land to where the track exits Mr

DOCDM-355838/1ph



Batchelor’s land. Although this may provide an alternative start to the track
emphasized the importance of the existing track remaining where it was because of the
history associated with its traditional use as a pathway. The alternative would also make
the walk to Cape Brett significantly longer

Walking access to the current cemetery/urupa is via the walkway to Oke Bay.

The Bay of Islands SJCAICYIMM., a5 requested by Mr Batchelor, arranged a meeting with
the hapu to discuss his development proposals for his land at Oke Bay. Only Ngati Kta
were able to make the meeting, Mr Batchelor is yet to meet with Patukeha.

The discussion at the meeting focussed on the development of Batchelor propetty and
how local iwi may be involved.

Mr Batchelor has calculated what he believes is a fair payment for thestrack passing
through his property based on a percentage of the current valuation of the property and

adding 30% (compensation for not being able to have full and freefaceess to his property)
which comes to an amount of Wﬁm

The Bay of Islands SIIVAIEY] has indicated that th{s Jamhount is outside of current
funding levels and will seek further advice.

Summary

My Department does not believe it is approptiate to provide for more than a token
payment for access through the Batchelor'pfoperty to Maori land.

Discussions regarding the track\/and access have yet to occur with local Iwi
representatives.

If necessary following this{discussion the Department will offer to make a token payment
for access. If this is declited and Mr Batchelor requires the access across his property to
be closed the signs ‘Will be removed and publications indicating this is the start of the
Cape Brett Track sill be amended. Walkers to Cape Brett will have to take the longer
alternative roufe/via Whangamumu or use a boat to get to Deep Water Cove.

TimvGroser
MINISTER OF CONSERVATION

DOCDM-355838/jph
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Our ref : Ministerial No. 08-B-0267

06 October 2008

TO: Hon Steve Chadwick
Minister of Conservation

FROM: Chris Jenkins
Conservator Northland

SUBJECT: MINISTERIAL BRIEFING REQUEST 08-B-0267 = JULIAN
BATCHELOR, OKE BAY, ACCESS TO CAPE BRETFWALK

Following a meeting you held with the Hon Shane Jones and”Mr Julian Batchelor, a
landowner at Oke Bay, Bay of Islands, you requested thatwyour Department provide a
briefing on the issues raised with possible solutions.

The issues are around the access to Cape Brett walk passing through Julian Batchelors
property at Oke Bay, Cape Brett Peninsula in € Bay of Islands. There are two main
issues that are required to be addressed :

1. Leasing or paying for a track easementthrough the Batchelor property

2. What is the tangata whenua atfitude to alternative track arrangements and the urupa
access issue.

Background

The Department ofConservation administers Oke Bay Scenic Reserve [a small Reserve
adjacent to Oke Bay Beach| and two larger more significant Reserves on the Cape Brett
Peninsula [maps,attached].

Access te-thevlarger reserves is either via the Cape Brett track or by boat at Oregon Cove
and Deep, Water Cove. Access to the Oke Bay Scenic Reserve and beach is via a walkway
from, the Rawhiti Rd. Halfway along this walkway the start of the Cape Brett track
cothimences, on the right, through private land (Batchelor) for a distance of approximately
200 metres. The track then continues along the peninsula through maori land and public
conservations land to Cape Brett. The Department provides a backcountry hut at Cape
Brett in a former lighthouse keepers residence. The track is arduous and it takes
approximately eight hours to reach Cape Brett. The track is used by around 1000
trampers each year. Cape Brett Walkways Ltd operate guided and non guided tours using
the track and hold a concession to use tracks that pass through conservation land and the
hut. The company has affiliations to the Rawhiti 3B2 Trust Board and pay the Trust
Board for the use of the track that passes through maori land.

DOCDM-347056/jph




When the prvate land at the start of the track came up for sale earlier this year the
Department sought funding through the Nature Heritage Fund to purchase the property.
The application was unsuccessful. A briefing was provided to you explaining the reasons
the application was declined.

Options/Issues

Conservancy staff mvestigated the possibility of realigning the start of the track through
the Oke Bay Scenic Reserve. Unfortunately the steep nature of the topography, msing up
from the beach to an almost vertical cliff does not allow for access up through thé reserve
to where the track starts on maori land.

Another option considered using a path above high tide around a rock platfoem and then
through maomn land. This is not considered feasible as at spring tide ox=when there is a
significant on shore wind there is virtually no flat land to walk on, the rogky platform can
become slippery/dangerous and the area through maori land that\would need to be
transversed contains significant wahi tapu sites.

Area staff met with SJPAIE)) a key contact from Patukeha hapu and trustee of
Rawhiti 3B2 Trust. GACUCY has lived in the area for nfaiy years and is very familiar with
the track and its history. explained that the{track is of great cultural significance
to maori. It is a traditional pathway that has existingf6r hundreds of years and leads from
the urupa at Rawhiti to many significant wahi tapu sites and maunga. Whilst not speaking
for all maori who have interest in the area, it 45 very likely that any realignment of the
traditional pathway would meet with a highevel of resistance from the hapu of Patukeha
and Ngati Kuta. They would not suppért/the alternative access option of going along the
beach above high tide then througliumaori land as there are caves and it 1s an urupa.

went further to explain.that another track was cut some time ago from the school
on Rawhiti Road through Wwa6r land to where the track exits the pnvate land
(Batchelor’s). Although tlis’may provide an alternative start to the track he emphasized
the importance of the, track femaining where it was because of the history associated with
it as a traditional pathway.
Walking access olthe current cemetery/urupa is via the walkway to Oke Bay. The
carrying of coffins'presents a challenge using the walkway as there are a number of steps
to negotiatel, Coftins are usually taken by vehicle through other private land via a roadway
to the northywot the urupa.

59(2)(3) the new owner to make contact with the hapu at Rawhiti so they can
korefo. The ‘take’ was between the landowner and tangata whenua.

The SIPAIE) contacted Julian Batchelor and provided contact details for the local
hapu and encouraged him to make contact. He has requested a meeting between the
parties.

Summary

DOCDM-347056/jph



The Department 1s not in a position to provide for a one off or ongoing lease
arrangement for access through the Batchelor property to maon land. The
appropriateness and setting of precedence of the Department securing a track through
puvate land to join up with other privately owned land needs careful consideration
particularly as people using the track through maori land are charged for the priviledge.

o)

DOCDM-347056/jph
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Ministerial letter template —- DOCDM-868702

Specifications
Margins 2.5 cm, font Arial 11 pt, text left-justified
Address starts 10 line spaces from top

This text box will be removed before the draft is submitted to the
Minister

Julian Batchelor

Dear Julian

Thank you for your email regarding your concerns at my Depariment charging for the use of
the walking track to the Cape Brett Hut.

My Department does not charge for this access. The majority of the track traverses Maori
owned land and the owners, Rawhiti 3B2 Trust charge, a.fee, which goes towards
maintaining the track.

is part of the walk to the Cape Brett Hut, J-stiggest that you discuss this with
, Bay of Islands [09 407 0305]. MBI has the loca
knowledge and is best placed to advise you on the options available.

If you wish to pursue the issue of reimbursementyfor the use of that portion of iour land that

As the use of the Departments hutiat the end of the Cape Brett peninsular is reliant on
visitors using the track crossing ‘private maori land, staff of my Department include the
charge for the use of this track.on our online booking system when people book the Cape

Brett Hut. The portion.6fthe money received for the use of the track is then paid back to the
Rawhiti 3B2 Trust.

| therefore confifm that my Department does not derive any financial benefit from the use of

the track to the\Cape Brett Hut. The only revenue it receives is from the hut fees from the
Cape Brett'\Hut:

I hope'this answers your question. Thank you for writing to me.

Yours sincerely

Honourable Maggie Barry ONZM

DOCDM-15626613/iph



Minister of Conservation



Ministerial letter template — DOCDM-868702

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

Thank you for your email of 20 February 2015 regarding your £oncerns at my Department
charging for the use of the walking track to the Cape Brett'Hut.

My Department does not charge for this access. The‘track to the Cape Brett Hut traverses
Maori owned land and the owners, Rawhiti 3B2 Trust, charge a cost for access across their
land which goes towards maintaining the track., The track is managed by Cape Brett
Walkways Limited.

My Department includes the charge for,track maintenance on our online booking system
when people book the Cape Brett Hdt,» The portion of the money received for the track is

then paid back to the Rawhiti 3B2<Jrust. | understand the short section of the track that goes
through your property is included in the maintenance regime.

If you wish to discuss this«matter further, | suggest that you contact

m, Bay of Islands [09 407 0305]. as the local
nowledge and is best placed to advise you on the detail.

| therefore confifm that my Department does not derive any financial benefit from the use of

the track to the\Cape Brett Hut. The only revenue it receives is from bookings and hut fees

for the Cape Brett Hut.

| hope'this answers your questions. Thank you for writing to me.

Yours sincerely

Honourable Maggie Barry ONZM
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Agreement for the use of the Department of Conservation’s National Visitor
Booking System by the External Service Provider

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 25% day of November 2009

BETWEEN: The Department of Conservation (Bay of Islands Area Office)

AND: The Cape Brett Walkways — Independent Walks (Concessionaire)

Background:

The National Visitor Booking System (NVB) is a tool that has been endorsed by the Bay of
Islands Area Office (BOIAO) based on proven and efficient management of ¥¢creational assets.
NVB demonstrates its capabilities by providing all New Zealanders and Visitors, free accessibility
to book and browse a variety of opportunities to experience recreationahactivities within the Bay
of Islands Area

The movement towards endorsing this tool has provided oppOrtunity for the BOIAO to offer
the Cape Brett Walkways - Independent Walks (External Sesyvice Provider), the opportunity to
have their walking access service featured on NVB, in/cenjunction with the Cape Brett Hut
readily available for public use as of December 1 2009:

The External Service Provider has verbally accepted the offer of utilising NVB

They have been advised that before the transition takes place, a formal agreement would need to
be established.

This agreement has been developed{by the Department of Conservation, Bay of Islands Area
Office, with the intention for ‘the) Cape Brett Walkways Independent Walks to become an
External Service Provider dssit relates to having their walking track featured on the online
booking system with the Cape'Brett Hut.

A national standard-Service Provider Agreement is in the process of development and anticipates
to be released inapproximately 6 to 12 months. There is opportunity to review this agreement at
that time.

When the BOIAO endorsed the use of NVB, it meant altering aspects of our practices to align
with the ptincipals of NVB.

The 'External Service Provider must agree to the whole of Schedule 1&2 before the transition of
the service can be implemented. The essential requirements set out below are key factors that
will also be featured in the standard Service Provider Agreement.

The BOIAO has the ability to further add to the National requirements, while operating within

the guidelines of the Standard Operating Procedures. This is additional based on a mutual
agreement between the Area Office and the Service Provider. (Special Conditions)
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"\ Department of Conservation
‘d Te Papa Atawbhbai

(Schedule 1)

Contact Details and Interpretation

1. Contact Details of the Parties

DOC:

The local site administrator

s9(2)(a)

Bay of Islands Area Office

34 Landing Road — P.O. Box 128, Kertkeri
P: (09) 4070300 or F: (09) 4077938

EXTERNAL AGENT PROVIDER:
Cape Brett Walkways — Independent Walks

Se€)

2. Variation to Schedule One:

Varations to Schedule One may be made only by e-mail exchange between the External
Service Provider and the DOC contact}

3. Interpretation:

For the purposes of the Agséement the following abbreviations and terms apply unless
the context otherwise requires:

“Accredited Bookifig Agent” people or businesses that regularly act on behalf of others to
complete bookings for DOC booked facilities or services, often as part of a tourism related business.
“Agreement”/means this document and its schedules

“Bay of Islands Area Office (BOIAO)” local administering body on behalf of the
organisation

“Deparurient (DOC)” National body — applies to the whole organisation

“External Service Provider” means an approved operator who holds a valid permit (aka
contession) to operate or guide their business on or within the direct vicity of
Conservation managed estates, whose services are featured on the DOC Booking System
with a service group

“National Visitor Booking System (NVB/Online Booking System)” means the web
enabled booking system owned and operated by DOC for booking its facilities and
services

“Realised” means revenue no longer held in advance and credited to the destination (in
this instance to the External Service Provider)

“Service Group” is a term used to identify an operating recreational area and its facilities,
administered by the area office

“Standard Operating Procedures” are the procedures that DOC staffs follow to
rationalise decision making processes
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(Schedule 2)
AGREEMENT:

1. The External Service Provider is responsible for managing all financial

reconciliations and administration of their business externally from NVB

2. The Department is responsible for managing all financial reconciliations solely,
within NVB on behalf of the Service Provider. However, the Department is\ot
connected to any other financial dealings or arrangements the Service Provider may

have externally from NVB

3. The Department is responsible for receiving all third parties moniéssot which is
deposited into an account within NVB, clearly identified in a trust known as Funds

on Behalf.

a. Monies received on behalf of the External Setvice Provider, become

realised the day after the service is utilised.

b. If the service is cancelled by the customerewithin 24 hours of the booked

date, 100% cancellation fees apply. (Refet to.13)

c. All monies claimed from the Depattment must be invoiced once a month.

The invoice is to be generated by theService Provider.

d. The Department intends to provide accurate information to the Service
Provider of the utilised services with a monthly statement of activity

e. On the 01" of the mofith, the Department will provide the Service
Provider with an autemated statement of activity of the services utilised for

that period

f.  If the External Service Provider has any discrepancies with the statement
provided bythe Department, it is up to the External Service Provider to
identify the discrepancy of which the Department must provide reason or

causc

g. _Thes Department endeavours to credit the External Service Provider

revenue due, within 5-10 working days upon receiving invoice

b/ An original deposit slip must be supplied to the Department by the
External Service Provider to validate the designated account where the

revenue is to be credited to.

4. Revenue will not be advanced through the National Visitor Booking System to the

External Service Provider for any period other than the current.

5. The Department is responsible for collecting revenue on behalf of the Service
Provider from accredited booking agents of which will be detailed in the monthly

statement.

6. The External Service Provider agrees to pay the Department a commission fee

¢ Eax

o} of its total revenue earned through the online booking system for creating
online visibility of its business for recreational purpose and the cost of all electronic

and manual financial transaction processed within NVB.

7. The External Service Provider is responsible for all asset maintenance and

upgrades of the walking track (with the exception of the DOC portion).
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8. The External Service Provider is accountable for any health and safety issues that
result from the use of it’s track unless an official notice has been submitted
informing public of dangers or closures

9. The BOIAO is accountable for any health and safety issues that result from the use
of it’s track unless an official notice has been submitted informing public of dangers
or closures

10. The External Service Provider agrees to have their service featured live for a
period of 12 months starting on the 01 December 09 ending on the 01 December
2010, however if a National Service Provider Agreement is developed within the set
period this agreement will immediately be up for renewal.

e Discussion of continuation of the Service will be reviewed prior(to the end
date

11. There is a 100% cancellation policy if a cancellation is made 24, hours prior to, or
on the day the Service is booked. The Department does nosintervene with refunds
on behalf of the Service Provider outside of the current/cancellation arrangement.
It becomes the responsibility of the Service Provider to téfund at its own discretion
externally from NVB. The Department will not advance money for discretionary
cancellations agreed between the Service Providef ahdvthe customer.

Special Conditions
12. The BOIAO agrees to: actively promotesthe External Service Provider through
the DOC website and WebPages as\it relates to the Cape Brett Experience,

provided that:

a. The External Service Prévider is responsible for ensuring the information
supplied always remaing consistent with the information the Department
displays on behalf of'the External Service Provider.

13. The BOIAO agrees.t6_submit important messages through NVB on behalf of the
External Service \Provider relating to up and coming events, track closutes or
changes impinging on or limiting independent access, provided that:

a. TheExternal Service Provider agrees to: give a minimum of 21 days
notiee to the Department of any planned, up and coming events to be
displayed through NVB. The Department encourages written notice by
letter or email.

b. Notify the BOIAO of any health and safety issues of the service that may
arise upon discovery. In this instance, verbal notification is acceptable

c. Ensure they inform the Department of changes relating to independent
access via this service. Any notification lasting more than 10 days must be
written, email correspondence is acceptable.

14. The BOIAO agrees to: provide the Service Provider with additional information
relating to:
1. Visitor Statistics
ii. Use of Facilities
iii. Financial Activity Reports

b. The BOIAO agrees to: provide support to the External Service Provider as
requested relating to any queries or concerns relating to the use of NVB
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SIGNED by:

Area Manager Bay of Islands
Rolien Elliot
Date:

In the presence of (witness)
Signature:

Name:

Occupation:

Address:

SIGNED by

Cape Brett Walkways-Independent Walks
(Concessionaite) Peter Stuart/Gary Hooson
Date:

In the presence of (witness)
Signature:

Name:

Occupation:

Address:

Disclaimer: This agreement has been developed on the basis of “good faith” betweetpthe Service Provider and the
Department of Conservation, Bay of Islands Area and is legally privileged.

DOCDM-509097 — Service Provider Agreement for Cape Brett Walkways Independent Walks



Concession number:

DATED

Between

MINISTER OF CONSERVATION
(""the Grantor")

and

CAPE BRETT\WALKWAYS LIMITED

(“the Concessionaire')

CONCESSION DOCUMENT
(PERMIT)

'1 Department of Conservation
‘/ Te Papa Atawbai
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THIS PERMIT is made this day of 2001

PARTIES:

1. MINISTER OF CONSERVATION, ("the Grantor")

2. CAPE BRETT WALWAYS LTD ("the Concessionaire")

BACKGROUND

A. The Reserves described in Schedule 1 as the Land is vested in’the Grantor;

B. Section 59A of the Reserves Act 1977 authorises the/Grantor, in accordance with Part
IIIB of the Conservation Act 1987, to grant a Coricession in respect of a Reserve vested
in the Crown including a reserve vested in the.Crown but controlled and managed by an
administering body under any of sections 28, 29;30, 35 and 36 of the Reserves Act 1977;

C. The Concessionaire wishes to carry outsthe Concession Activity on the Land subject to
the terms and conditions of this Dogument.

D. The Grantor is satisfied that the\tequirements of Part III B of the Conservation Act 1987
have been met

OPERATIVE PARTS

TERMS AND CONDIFIONS

1.0

1.1

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this'Document, unless the context otherwise requires:

“Activity” has the same meaning as "Activity" in section 2 of the Conservation Act 1987.
“Access” means the right, in common with others, to pass and repass over the Land and
any roads of the Grantor for ingress to and egress from the Site as is reasonably necessary
for the Concessionaire to exercise its rights under this Permit. Access includes helicopter

access to the Site if specified in Schedule 2

“Background” means the matters referred to under the heading ‘Background” on p2 of
this Document.

“Concession” means a concession as defined in section 2 of the Conservation Act 1987.
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“Concession Activity” means the use of the Land for purposes of the Activity carried out
by the Concessionaire and specified in Item 2 of Schedule 1.

“Concession Fee” means the amount specified in Item 6 of Schedule 1 and charged by
the Grantor for the Concessionaire's right to carry out the Concession Activity on the Site.

It includes any variation in that amount following a Concession Fee Review.

“Concession Fee Payment Date” means the date specified in Item 8 of Schedule 1 on
which each instalment of the Concession Fee falls due for payment.

“Concession Fee Review” means a review of the Concession Fee determined in
accordance with clause 7 of this Document.

“Concession Fee Review Date” means the date specified in Item 10~of Schedule 1 on
which the Concession Fee Review occurs being at 3 year intervals calculated from the

date of commencement of this Document.

“Conservation” has the same meaning as "Consesvation" in section 2 of the
Conservation Act 1987.

“Conservation Area” has the same meaning ds¢“Conservation area in section 2 of the
Conservation Act 1987.

“Co-Site” means the use of the Site orsthé Concessionaire’s facilities on the Site by a
third party for an Activity and~‘Co-Sitee” and “Co-Siting” have corresponding

meanings.

“Department” means the/Department of Conservation established by section 5 of the
Conservation Act 1987,

“Director-Generaldmeans the Director-General of Conservation.

“Document’ “means this Permit and any subsequent amendments and all schedules,
annexures, and'plans attached to it.

“FinahExpiry Date” means the date specified in Item 5 of Schedule 1.

“Guarantor”, where relevant, means the person guaranteeing this Document under
clause 35.

“Land” means a Conservation Area, a Park, or a Reserve, whichever is relevant in the
context of this Document, being the area more particularly described in Item 1 of
Schedule 1; and includes, where relevant, the Site.

“Park” means a national park constituted under the National Parks Act 1980.

“Penalty Interest Rate” means the rate specified in Item 9 of Schedule 1.
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“Permit” has the same meaning as “Permit” in section 2 of the Conservation Act 1987
and for purposes of this Document is the Permit granted under this Document by the
Grantor to the Concessionaire under either section 17Q of the Conservation Act 1987,
section 59A of the Reserves Act 1977 or section 49 of the National Parks Act 1980.

“Reserve” means a reserve vested in the Grantor under the Reserves Act 1977.

“Site” means, where relevant, part of the Land the details of which are more particularly
shown on the plan attached to Schedule 2.

“Term” means the period of time specified in Item 3 of Schedule 1 duringswhich this
Document operates. It includes, where relevant, any period of renewal of the~Term.

“Working Days” means days on which the registered banks are open.for'general banking
business in Wellington.

1.2 In this Document unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) a reference to a party is a reference to a party tosthis Document and includes that
party's successors in title;

(b) schedules and annexures form part of thisdDocument and have effect accordingly;

(c) words appearing in this Document which also appear in Schedule 1 mean and
include the details appearing after,th€ém in that Schedule;

(d) a provision of this Document-to be performed by two or more persons binds those
persons jointly and seyerally;

(e) a reference to a persen includes an individual, a body corporate, an association of
persons (whether corporate or not), a trust, or an agency of State or of the Crown
(in each caseswhether or not having separate legal personality);

63} words“na-singular number include the plural and vice versa;

(g)  words importing a gender include all other genders;

(h) references to a statute or statutory provision, or order or regulation made under it,
include that statute, provision, or regulation as amended, modified, re-enacted or
replaced from time to time whether before or after the date of this Document;

(1) where the Grantor's consent or approval is expressly required under a provision of
this Document, the Concessionaire must seek the consent or approval of the
Grantor for each separate occasion it is required notwithstanding that the Grantor

has granted consent or approval for a like purpose on a prior occasion.

1.3 Words used in the Background to this Document have the same meaning given to them in
clause 1.1.
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2.0

2.1

2.2

23

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

52

6.0

6.1

GRANT OF PERMIT

In exercise of the Grantor's powers under section 17Q of the Conservation Act 1987 the
Grantor GRANTS to the Concessionaire a PERMIT to carry out the Concession
Activity on the Site subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Document.

In exercise of the Grantor's powers under section 59A of the Reserves Act 1977 the
Grantor GRANTS to the Concessionaire a PERMIT to carry out the Concession
Activity on the Site subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Document.

In exercise of the Grantor's powers under section 49 of the National Parks Aet 1980 the
Grantor GRANTS the Concessionaire a PERMIT to carry out the Concession Activity
on the Site subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Document,

TERM

The Permit is for the Term specified in Item 3 of Schedule, 1

The Term and all renewals, if any, end on the Final{Expiry Date specified in Item 4 of
Schedule 1.

SURRENDER OF DOCUMENT

If the Concessionaire wishes to teminate this Document before the expiry of the Term
the Concessionaire must give the Grantor 3 months’ notice in writing.

The Grantor must accept the\Concessionaire's notice of termination but in doing so may
impose whatever terms, and-conditions the Grantor considers appropriate, including the
matters referred to inclause 6.2.

CONCESSIONFEE

The Coneessionaire must pay to the Grantor in advance and in the manner directed by the
Grantor the Concession Fee plus GST in the instalments and on the Concession Fee
Payment Dates specified in Items 5, 6 and 7 of Schedule 1.

If the Concessionaire defaults in payment of the Concession Fee for 14 days after a
Concession Fee Payment Date the Concessionaire is to pay interest on the unpaid
Concession Fee from the Concession Fee Payment Date until the date of payment at the
Penalty Interest Rate specified in Item 8 of Schedule 1.

OTHER CHARGES

In addition to the Concession Fee the Concessionaire must pay the following charges
("Other Charges") on demand and in the manner directed by the Grantor:
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6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

7.1
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(a) all levies, taxes, duties, assessments, charges and other outgoings which may be
charged, levied or reasonably assessed or which may become payable in relation
to the Concessionaire’s use of the Site or the carrying on of the Concession
Activity;

(b) all costs in relation to the supply of water, sewage, drainage and rubbish disposal
which are not otherwise included in any charges or assessments made by any
authority or by the Grantor;

(c) all costs incurred by the Grantor in providing an annual building warrant of fithess
to any territorial authority, including any costs paid to an independent qualified
person for any report establishing or re-establishing compliance with a
compliance schedule. If any work is required to any structure or‘facility of the
Grantor’s on the Site in order to obtain a new building warrant of fitness, the
Grantor is to pay the cost of that work subject to the ConcesSionaire's obligations
under clause 10.

If the Concessionaire surrenders this Document with the\consent of the Grantor, the
Concessionaire will continue to be liable for and must pay ‘to the Grantor on demand in
respect of its use of the Site and its conduct of the Concession Activity all Other Charges
which may be due for the current payment period even though that this period may not
expire until after the date of surrender.

Where the Grantor or Director-General, has provided a community service, benefit or
facility for the benefit of the Concessionait€ under section 17ZH of the Conservation Act
1987, the Concessionaire must pay“the Grantor whatever contribution the Grantor
determines as specified in Schedule2-

The Concessionaire must paysall charges for electric power, water supply, geothermal
energy, telephone rental and/other utilities supplied to the Site. The Grantor will not be
liable for any cost incufred in re-establishing the supply of any of these utilities in the
event of any of themibecoming unavailable for any reason.

If, during thé\Term, the Site becomes rateable land, following any amendment to the
Rating Powers Act 1988 or the introduction of a new Act in substitution for it and the
Site’s rateability is attributable to the Concession Activity, or if separate rates are levied
under section 7 of the Rating Powers Act 1988 in respect of the Site and are attributable
to the.Concession Activity, the Concessionaire is to pay any rates which may be struck or
levied and which are attributable to the Concession Activity; but both parties expressly
agree that such payment is not to constitute an acknowledgement of exclusive possession
by the Concessionaire of the Site.

CONCESSION FEE REVIEW

The Grantor will review the Concession Fee on the Concession Fee Review Dates in the
following manner:
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®
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the Grantor will commence the review not earlier than 3 months before a
Concession Fee Review Date and no later than 9 months following the
Concession Fee Review Date by giving written notice to the Concessionaire.

subject to clause 7.1(e), the notice must specify the Concession Fee which the
Grantor considers to be the market value for the Concession Activity as at the
Concession Fee Review Date having regard to the matters specified in section
17Y(2) of the Conservation Act 1987.

if, within 28 days of receipt of the Grantor's notice, the Concessionaire~gives
written notice to the Grantor that the Concessionaire disputes the proposed new
Concession Fee the new Concession Fee is to be determined in aceordance with
clause 7. 2 (a) or (b).

if the Concessionaire does not give notice to the Grantor under‘clause 7.1 (c) the
Concessionaire will be deemed to have accepted the Coneession Fee specified in
the Grantor's notice.

notwithstanding clause 7.1(b), the new Concession Fee so determined or accepted
must not be less than the Concession Fee pagable during the year preceding the
particular Concession Fee Review Date and will be the Concession Fee payable
by the Concessionaire from the Concession Fee Review Date.

until determination of the new Concession Fee, the Concession Fee payable by the
Concessionaire from the Concession’Fee Review Date is to be the Concession Fee
specified in the Grantor's notice,'On determination of the new Concession Fee an
adjustment is to be made,dnd-paid, either by the Grantor or by the Concessionaire,
whichever is applicable.

7.2  Immediately the Concessienaire gives notice to the Grantor under clause 7.1(c) the
parties will endeavoui\foragree on a new Concession Fee. If the parties are unable to
reach agreement within'28 days the new Concession Fee is to be determined either:

(2)

(b)
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by onéparty giving written notice to the other requiring the new Concession Fee
to, beddetermined by arbitration; or, if the parties agree,

by registered valuers acting as experts and not as arbitrators as follows:

(1) each party will appoint a valuer and give written notice of the appointment
to the other party within 14 days of the parties agreeing to determine the
new Concession Fee by this means.

(i1) if the party receiving a notice does not appoint a valuer within the 14 day
period the valuer appointed by the other party is to determine the new
Concession Fee and that valuer's determination will be binding on both
parties.

(iii)  before commencing their determination the respective valuers must
appoint an umpire who need not be a registered valuer.



(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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the valuers are to determine the new Concession Fee which they consider
to be the market value for the Concession Activity as at the Concession
Fee Review Date having regard to the matters specified in section 17Y(2)
of the Conservation Act 1987 but in no case is the new Concession Fee to
be less than the Concession Fee payable during the year preceding the
particular Concession Fee Review Date. If they fail to agree the
Concession Fee is to be determined by the umpire.

in determining the Concession Fee the valuers or umpire are to disregasd
the annual cost to the Concessionaire to maintain or provide Access+0 the
Land.

each party is to be given the opportunity to make written or verbal
representations or submissions to the valuers or the umpirg subject to such
reasonable time and other limits as the valuers.6r~the umpire may
prescribe.

the valuers or the umpire must have regard,to, any such representations but
will not be bound by them.

(c) the valuers or umpire must give written (notice to the parties once they have
determined the new Concession Fee. Thedotice is to provide how the costs of the
determination are to be borne and be bitiding on the parties.

d @

(i)

(i)

if a Concession Fee Reyiew date is postponed because of a moratorium
imposed by law the-€oncession Fee Review Date is to take place at the
date the moratoriuin isifted or so soon afterwards as is practicable; and

the Concession, Fee Review will establish the market value for the
Concession“Activity as at that date instead of the date fixed under clause
7.1 having regard to the matters specified in section 17Y(2) of the
Consefvation Act 1987 but in no case is the new Concession Fee to be less
than“the Concession Fee payable during the year preceding the particular
Concession Fee Review Date; and

each subsequent Concession Fee Review date will take place in
accordance with the date fixed in clause 7.1.

8.0/ CONCESSION ACTIVITY

8.1 The Concessionaire is not to use the Site for any purpose other than the Concession

Activity.

8.2 The Concessionaire must, as a condition of this Document:

(a) take out and maintain and pay all fees for all licences, permits, authorisations,
consents (including resource consents under the provisions of the Resource
Management Act 1991), and renewals (""the Permissions") as may be necessary for
the proper conduct of the Concession Activity;
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9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

(b)  not do or suffer to be done any act whereby these Permissions may be forfeited or
suspended or refused.

SUPPLY OF INFORMATION

At the Grantor’s request the Concessionaire must supply the Grantor with a complete
statement of audited financial accounts.

Any information supplied to the Grantor under clause 9.1 is subject to an obligation of
confidence; but the parties acknowledge that such information may be subject to the
provisions of the Official Information Act 1982 and the Privacy Act 1993.

COMPLIANCE
The Concessionaire will comply where relevant:

(a) with the provisions of any conservation management strategy or conservation
management plan as required by section, 17W(7) of the Conservation Act 1987
pursuant to Part IIIA of the Conservation“Act 1987 or Part IIA of the Reserves Act
1997 or any general policy statement 6r-management plan under section 44 or 45
of the National Parks Act 1980, which ever is appropriate to the Site, together
with any amendment or review{of ahy policy, strategy or plan whether approved
before, on, or after the date en which this Document takes effect; and

(b)  with the ConservationsA¢t 1987, the Reserves Act 1977, the National Parks Act
1980 and any other-Statute, ordinance, regulation, bylaw, or other enactment
(collectively the. “Degislation”) affecting or relating to the Site, or affecting or

relating to th&Concession Activity, including any bylaws made under the
Reserves Actd977 or the National Parks Act 1980.

The Concessionaire must comply with all conditions imposed by the Grantor in granting
this Docunieft

(a) A" breach or contravention by the Concessionaire of a relevant conservation
management strategy, conservation management plan, management plan or
general policy statement will be deemed to be a breach of this Document.

(b) A breach or contravention by the Concessionaire of the Legislation affecting or
relating to the Site or affecting or relating to the Concession Activity will be
deemed to be a breach of this Document.

If the Legislation requires the Grantor to spend money on the Grantor’s own structures,
facilities or alterations on the Site, the Grantor may charge, in addition to the Concession
Fee, an annual sum equal to 15% of the amount spent by the Grantor.

If the Legislation requires the Grantor to spend any money on structures, facilities or
alterations on the Site which the Grantor considers unreasonable, the Grantor may
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determine this Document and any dispute as to whether or not the amount is unreasonable
is to be determined in accordance with clause 27.

CONCESSIONAIRE’S STRUCTURES, FACILITIES AND LAND
ALTERATIONS

The Concessionaire must not erect or bring on to the Site any structure, install any facility
or alter the Site in any way without the prior written consent of the Grantor.

In giving approval under clause 11.1 the Grantor may, in the Grantor’s sole and absolute
discretion, impose any reasonable terms and conditions, including a peview of the
Concession Fee, as the Grantor considers appropriate under this clause; ‘and may also
decline the grant of such approval after consideration of the relevant conservation and
environmental issues.

The Concessionaire must pay to the Grantor all costs assoctated with applications for
approval under this clause determined at the standard \rates then applying in the

Department for cost recovery of staff time and expenses:

The Concessionaire must, upon request by the Grantor, submit written engineering or
building plans and details to the Grantor for appteval before :

(a) erecting or altering any structure on the' Site;
(b) bringing any structure on to the'Site;

(c) installing any facilities’onthe Site; or

(d) altering the Site in any way.

The Concessionaipe must not commence any work on the Site until the Grantor has given
written approval.

When undéstaking any work under this clause the Concessionaire must comply with all
statutory\requirements including obtaining building consents and code compliance
certifieates under the Building Act 1991.

The Concessionaire is to keep and maintain its structures and facilities on, or alterations

to, the Site in good repair.

CONCESSIONAIRE’S FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

The Concessionaire must at the Concessionaire’s expense:

(a) if required by the Grantor take all steps necessary to control any pest, insect or
rodent infestation occurring in or emanating from the Site or any structure or

facility on the Site, and if considered necessary by the Grantor, engage a pest
exterminator approved by the Grantor;
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(b) comply strictly with the provisions of the Biosecurity Act 1993;

(c) comply with all requirements of any competent authority regarding sanitation and
with all relevant bylaws and fire safety requirements;

(d) at all times display a copy of the relevant current building warrant of fitness under
the Building Act 1991 showing the location of the compliance schedule in a place
in each building (as defined in that Act) on the Site to which users of the building
have ready access;

(e) keep and maintain all building systems and any structure on the Sitein decordance
with the requirements of any compliance schedule;

® retain and make available to any territorial authority and any. other person with a
right to inspect any structures on the Site under the Building Act 1991 a copy of
the compliance schedule together with the written reportsrelating to compliance
with the compliance schedule over the previous two y¢ar period.

13.0 PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT

13.1 Except as approved in writing by the Grantorthe*Concessionaire will not, whether by act
or omission:

(a) interfere with, remove, damagey, or endanger the natural features, animals, plants,
or historic resources on thé&Sit€; or

(b)  bring any plants, animals, or firearms on to the Site; or

(c) deposit on the“Site debris, rubbish or other dangerous or unsightly matter, or
contaminate any water body on the Site; or

(d)  pile of\store materials in any place on the Site where it may obstruct the public or
credt€ anuisance; or

(e) conduct any noxious, noisome, dangerous or offensive activity on the Site;

13.2 ,<The Concessionaire will keep the Site in a clean and tidy condition and free of weeds and
all organisms specified as pests in a relevant pest management strategy.

1373  The Concessionaire must make adequate provision for suitable sanitary facilities for the
Site if required by the Grantor and for the disposal of all refuse material and is to comply
with the reasonable directions of the Grantor in regard to these matters.

13.4 The Concessionaire will keep all structures, facilities and land alterations and their
surroundings in a clean and tidy condition. If reasonably required by the Grantor the
Concessionaire will paint all structures and facilities in colours specified in writing by the
Grantor and with paints of a type approved in writing by the Grantor.
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13.5 If, during the Term, the Concessionaire removes a structure or facility from the Site the
Concessionaire will, unless the Grantor indicates otherwise in writing, repair and make
good at its own expense all damage which may have been done by the removal and will
leave the Site in a clean and tidy condition.

13.6  Should the Concessionaire fail to repair and restore the damage within 6 months of the
removal of a structure or facility or such further time as the Grantor may approve in
writing, the Grantor may undertake whatever works and operations are necessary to effect
the same and may recover from the Concessionaire any costs and expenses incurréd-in
doing it as a debt due by the Concessionaire to the Grantor.

13.7 The Concessionaire must:

(2)

(b)

(©)
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take all reasonable precautions to ensure no fire hazards arise fron\its carrying out
of the Concession Activity or from any act or neglect;of its employees,
contractors, invitees or agents;

not light or permit to be lit any fire on the Site without the written permission of
the Grantor in which event the following provisiens\are to apply:

(1) the Concessionaire may light or usé at)a campsite a fire in the open air if
the fire is an approved camp fire.and 1s fuelled by dead wood only;

(i)  an approved camp fire is any fire lit for the purpose of camping, cooking,
comfort, or warmth;

(iii)  an approved camp fire-may not be lit:

(aa) withinn3, metres of a tree or place underneath overhanging
vegetation;

(bby “{within 3 metres of a log or dry vegetation;

(ce) unless the Concessionaire clears all combustible material away
from around the base of the approved camp fire before lighting it;

(dd) where there are notices or other advertising limiting the lighting of
fires to a particular receptacle or to a particular place;

(ee)  during a prohibited fire season

(iv)  for the purpose of this paragraph “open air” has the same meaning ascribed
to it in the Forest and Rural Fires Act 1977

not store or permit to be stored fuels or other combustible materials on the Site
without the written permission of the Grantor. In that event storage of fuels and

combustible materials must be in accordance with the provisions of the Dangerous
Goods Act 1974;
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(d) comply with the Grantor's requirements for fire warning and safety equipment and
for fire fighting equipment to be kept on the Site at all times.

The Concessionaire must ensure that its employees, clients and invitees do not carry out
any acts prohibited under clause 13.

The Concessionaire must immediately report to the Grantor any act in contravention of
clause 13 and wherever possible the names and addresses of any person carrying out such
acts; and must provide the Grantor with details of the circumstances surrounding spel
incidents.

ADVERTISING

The Concessionaire must not erect or display any signs or advertisidg on the Site without
the prior written approval of the Grantor. At the expiry or termination of this Concession
the Concessionaire must remove all signs and advertising material and make good any
damage caused by the removal.

Where required by the Grantor, the Concessionaire must-ensure that all its advertising and
promotional material specifies that it is carrying(out the Concession Activity under a
Concession granted by the Grantor on land adminiStered by the Department.

If required by the Lessor in writing the Concessionaire must include information in its
advertising and promotional material which assists its clients to understand the features
and values of the natural and historie-résources of the Site and the surrounding area.

In preparing such information/th€ Concessionaire must obtain information from and have
regard to the views of tangata Whenua.

EMPLOYMENT, QF "STAFF

The Concesgsionaire must ensure that the Concession Activity is conducted at all times by
a person or persons suitably trained and qualified to carry out the Concession Activity.

The «Concessionaire must provide the Grantor with evidence of the competency and
qualifications of its employees if the Grantor so requests.

The Concessionaire must comply with all statutes relating to employment of staff.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Concessionaire is to carry out the Concession Activity on the Site in a safe and
reliable manner and must comply with:

() the Health and Safety in Employment Act 1992 and its regulations; and
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(b) all other statutes, regulations and bylaws and all notices and requisitions of any
competent authority relating to the conduct of the Concession Activity.

The Concessionaire must notify the Grantor of any natural events or activities on the Site
or the surrounding area which may endanger the public or the environment.

The Concessionaire must:

(a) take all reasonable steps to protect the safety of all persons present on the Sité.and
must, where necessary, erect protective signposts warning the public, of Jany
dangers they may encounter as a result of the Concessionaire’s operations;

(b)  take all reasonable steps to eliminate any dangers to the public and.must clearly
and permanently mark any that remain and of which the Concessionaire is aware.

Before commencing the Concession Activity the Concessionaire ‘must, if required by the
Grantor, prepare a safety plan and have it audited by a suitablynqualified person approved
by the Grantor.

The Concessionaire must not commence the Concession-Activity until:

(a) the person appointed to audit the safety” plan has certified the safety plan is
suitable for the Concession Activity;and

(b)  the Concessionaire supplies théGrantor with a copy of the safety plan certified
under clause 16.5(a).

Receipt of the certified safety<{plan by the Grantor is not in any way to limit the
obligations of the Concesstonaire under clause 16 and is not to be construed as implying
any responsibility or liability-On the part of the Grantor.

TEMPORARY SUSPENSION

The Grantow’may temporarily suspend this Document if, in the opinion of the Grantor,
there is.a, temporary risk to public safety or the safety of the Department's staff or the
safety 0f ‘other Concessionaires whether arising from natural events such as earthquake,
land. slip, volcanic activity, or flood or whether arising in any other way including the
activities of the Concessionaire, its employees, clients or invitees.

If in the opinion of the Grantor the activities of the Concessionaire, its employees, clients
or invitees are having or may have an adverse effect on the environment and the Grantor
is of the opinion that the effect can be avoided, remedied or mitigated to an extent
satisfactory to the Grantor, the Grantor may suspend this Concession until the
Concessionaire remedies, avoids or mitigates the adverse impact to the satisfaction of the
Grantor.

The Grantor may suspend this Concession while the Grantor investigates any of the
circumstances contemplated in clauses 17.1 and 17.2 and also while the Grantor
investigates any potential breach or possible offence by the Concessionaire whether or
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not related to the Concession Activity under the Conservation Act 1987 or any of the
Acts mentioned in the First Schedule of that Act of which the Grantor has become aware.

The word “investigates” in clause 17.3 includes the laying of charges and awaiting the
decision of the Court.

During any period of temporary suspension the Concession Fee payable by the
Concessionaire is to abate in fair proportion to the loss of use by the Concessionaire ©f
the Site.

The Grantor is not to be liable to the Concessionaire for any loss sustained by the
Concessionaire by reason of the suspension of the Concession under clause~17v\including
loss of profits.

ASSIGNMENT

The Concessionaire is not to transfer, subpermit, assign, mortgage or otherwise dispose of
the Concessionaire's interest under this Document or «any“part of it without the prior
written consent of the Grantor. The Grantor may in the-Grantor’s discretion decline any
application for consent under this clause.

Sections 17P, 17S, 17T, 17U, 17W, 17X, 17ZB-and 17ZC of the Conservation Act 1987
apply to applications for consent under this ¢lause unless the Grantor, in the Grantor’s
discretion, decides otherwise.

If the Grantor gives consent under this clause the Concessionaire is to remain liable to
observe and perform the terms and conditions of this Document throughout the Term and
is to procure from the transferee, subpermitee, or assignee a covenant to be bound by the
terms and conditions of this-Document.

The Concessionaire must pay the costs reasonably incurred by the Grantor incidental to
any application for eonsent, whether or not such consent is granted.

Any changednsthe shareholding of the Concessionaire altering the effective control of the
Concessienaire will be deemed to be an assignment and will require the consent of the
Grantor.

TERMINATION

The Grantor may terminate this Concession by 14 days notice in writing to the
Concessionaire if:

(a) the Concession Fee or any other money payable to the Grantor under this
Document is in arrears and unpaid for 14 days after any of the days appointed for

payment whether it has been lawfully demanded or not; or

(b) (1) the Concessionaire breaches any terms of this Document; and
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(i1) the Grantor has notified the Concessionaire in writing of the breach; and

(i)  the Concessionaire does not rectify the breach within 7 days of receiving
notification; or

(c) the Concessionaire ceases to conduct the Concession Activity or, in the reasonable
opinion of the Grantor, the services provided by the Concessionaire are manifestly
inadequate; or

(d)  the Concessionaire is convicted of an offence, whether or not related ‘to)the
Concession Activity, under the Conservation Act 1987 or any of the Aets listed in
the First Schedule to that Act; or the Health and Safety in Employment*Act 1982;
or the Building Act 1991; or the Resource Management Act“l991; or the
Biosecurity Act 1993; or

(e) the Concessionaire or the Guarantor is dissolved; or entets into any composition
with or assignment for the benefit of its creditors; er\is*adjudged bankrupt; or
being a company, has a receiver appointed; or is put\into liquidation; or is placed
under statutory management; or has a petition for:winding up presented against it;
or is otherwise unable to pay its debts as theyifall due; or the estate or interest of
the Concessionaire is made subject to a,Writ of Sale or charging order; or the
Concessionaire ceases to function or opetate; or

€y} there is, in the opinion of the Grantot, a permanent risk to public safety or the
environment whether arising from.the conduct of the Concession Activity or from
natural causes such as earthquake, land slip, volcanic activity, flood, or arising in
any other way, whether of\iiet’from any breach of the terms of this Document on
the part of the Concessionaire.

If the Grantor terminates the-Concession under this clause all rights of the Concessionaire
are to cease absolutelyybut the Concessionaire is not to be released from any liability to
pay the Concession Eee'or other monies up to the date of termination or for any breach of
any term up to the date of termination.

The Granfor ;,may exercise the Grantor’s right under this clause to terminate the

Concessten/notwithstanding any prior waiver or failure to take action by the Grantor or
any indulgence granted by the Grantor for any matter or default.

GRANTOR MAY REMEDY CONCESSIONAIRE’S DEFAULT

The Grantor may elect to remedy at any time without notice any default by the
Concessionaire under this Concession.

The Concessionaire must pay to the Grantor forthwith on demand all reasonable costs and
expenses incurred by the Grantor, including legal costs and expenses as between solicitor

and client, in remedying such default.

GRANTOR’S DIRECTIONS
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The Concessionaire must comply with all reasonable notices and directions of the Grantor
concerning the Concession Activity on the Site or the conduct of any person on the Site
under the authority of this Document.

POWERS, RIGHTS AND AUTHORITIES

All powers, rights and authorities of the Grantor under this Document and any notice
required to be given by the Grantor may be exercised and given by the Director-General
or any officer, employee, or agent of the Director-General.

INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

The Concessionaire will indemnify and keep indemnified the Grantor-against all claims
made by any person in respect of any injury, loss, or damage,.including fire, caused or
suffered as a result of or arising out of any acts or omissionS\of*the Concessionaire, its
employees, agents, contractors, or clients or otherwise caused-as a result of its carrying
out the Concession Activity on the Site.

This indemnity is to continue after the expiry or other determination of this Document in
respect of those acts or omissions occurring or arising before its expiry or determination.

Without prejudice to or in any way, limiting its liability under clause 23.1 the
Concessionaire must take out and keep infotce during the Term:

(a) a policy of public liabilit{, insurance against liability for loss, damage or injury
from any one single agcident or event arising out of its conduct of the Concession
Activity on the Site-and.covering:

(1) general indemnity for a sum not less than the amount specified in Item 10
of Schédule 1; and

(i) , “Forest and Rural Fires Act 1977 extension for a sum not less than the
amount specified in Item 11 of Schedule 1; and

(b) Statutory liability for the amount specified in Item 12 of Schedule 1; and

(c) such other policy or policies of insurance against any other liability and for such
other sums which the Grantor specifies in Item 13 of Schedule 1.

With respect to clause 23.3 the Concessionaire must provide copy certificates of currency
for the policies of insurance before commencing the Concession Activity and on each
renewal of them.

(a) Without prejudice to any other provision of this Document the Concessionaire
will indemnify the Grantor against all damage or loss resulting from any act or
omission on the part of the Concessionaire or the Concessionaire's employees,
agents, contractors, clients, or invitees;
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(b) The Concessionaire is to recompense the Grantor for all expenses incurred by the
Grantor in making good any damage to the Site or the property of the Grantor
resulting from such act or omission.

(a) The Grantor will not be liable and does not accept any responsibility for damage
to or interference with the Concession Activity or to the structures or facilities on
the Site or any other indirect or consequential damage due to any natural disaster,
vandalism, sabotage, fire or exposure to the elements except where, subject to the
clause 23.6(b), such damage or interference is caused by any wilful acét’er
omission of the Grantor, the Grantor’s employees, agents or contractors;

(b)  Where the Grantor is found to be liable due to a wilful act or omigsiony the total
extent of the Grantor’s liability is limited to $1,000,000 in.respect of the
Concessionaire's structures and facilities.

Notwithstanding anything else in clause 23 the Grantor is notJiable for any indirect or
consequential loss howsoever caused.

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND LAND-REHABILITATION

The Concessionaire must, during the Term, if the«Grantor so requests in writing, design in
consultation with the Grantor and undertake"d@ programme to monitor and report on the
environmental effects of the Concessionaire’s use of the Site and conduct of the
Concession Activity on the Site.

If the Grantor does not make a request under clause 24.1 the Concessionaire must, during
the Term if the Grantor so “fequests in writing, pay to the Grantor the annual
environmental monitoringcentribution specified in Item 14 of Schedule 1 to enable the
Grantor to design and undertake a programme to monitor the environmental effects of the
Concessionaire’s conduct.of the Concession Activity on the Site.

Subject to any conditions imposed by the Grantor and set out in Schedule 3, at the expiry,
surrender or,termination of this Document, the Concessionaire must reinstate the Site to
its condition” at the commencement of the Term and replant the Site with indigenous
vegetation of a similar abundance and diversity as at the commencement of the Term.

EXPIRY OF PERMIT

If the parties have not entered into a new agreement by the Final Expiry Date the
Concessionaire accepts that the Grantor has no liability whatsoever for any costs incurred
by the Concessionaire as a result of the expiry of this Document.

Upon the expiry or earlier termination of the Term the Grantor will not be liable to pay
compensation for any structure, facility or land alteration of the Concessionaire, all of
which, subject to clause 25.4 are to remain the property of the Concessionaire and will be
deemed not to have become fixtures on the Site.
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Subject to any conditions set out on Schedule 3, at the expiry, surrender or termination of
the Term the Concessionaire must remove all the Concessionaire’s structures and
facilities on the Site unless the Grantor approves otherwise in writing.

If the Concessionaire does not remove the structures and facilities as required by clause
25.3, or as otherwise approved by the Grantor, the structures and facilities remaining on
the Site will be deemed to have become fixtures and ownership in them will vest
absolutely in the Grantor.

In that case the Grantor will not be liable to pay any compensation to the Concessienaire
for the structures and facilities and may, at the Grantor’s option, remove orrdestroy or
otherwise dispose of them and recover the costs and expenses of the- rémoval or
destruction from the Concessionaire as a debt due to the Grantor.

FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party will be liable to the other party for any delay,in performance of, or failure to
perform, its obligations (other than a payment of money)-under this Document as a result
of any cause beyond its reasonable control.

If the delay or failure continues for at least.28 days either party will be entitled to
terminate this Document by notice in writing,

DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND-ARBITRATION

If a dispute arises between th€ parties in connection with this Document including
without limitation the intespretation, validity, breach or termination of any of its
provisions, the parties will,swithout prejudice to any other rights or entitlements they may
have under this Docundent or otherwise, attempt to resolve the dispute by agreement
using informal digpute resolution techniques such as negotiation, mediation, independent
expert appraisal or any other alternative dispute resolution technique. The rules
governing any.sueh technique adopted are to be agreed between the parties.

If the dispute is not capable of resolution by agreement within 14 days of written notice
by ome party to the other (or such further period as the parties may agree to in writing)
either/party may refer the dispute to the Disputes Tribunal, where relevant, or to
arbitration which arbitration is to be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the
Arbitration Act 1996.

All arbitration proceedings are to take place in New Zealand and to be governed by New
Zealand law.

If the parties do not agree on an arbitrator within 10 working days of a party giving
written notice of the requirement to appoint an arbitrator the President of the New
Zealand Law Society is to appoint the arbitrator. In either case the arbitrator must not be
a person who has participated in an informal dispute resolution procedure in respect of
the dispute.
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The arbitrator must include in the arbitration award reasons for the determination.

NOTICES

Any notice to be given under this Document by one party to the other is to be in writing
and made by personal delivery, by pre-paid post or by facsimile addressed to the
receiving party at the address or facsimile number set out in Item 15 of Schedule 1.

A notice given in accordance with clause 28.1 will be deemed to have been received:

(a) in the case of personal delivery, on the date of delivery;

(b) in the case of a letter, on the third working day after posting;

(c) in the case of facsimile, on the date of dispatch.

COSTS

The Concessionaire must pay the Grantor's legal, costs and expenses of and incidental to
preparing and executing this Document or any ext€nsion or variation of this Document.

The Concessionaire must pay in full immediately on demand all costs and fees (including
but not limited to solicitors’ costs and the.fees of debt collecting agencies engaged by the

Grantor) arising out of and associated with steps taken by the Grantor:

(a) to enforce or attempt té enforce the Grantor’s rights and powers under this
Document if the Cone¢ssionaire is in breach or default;

(b)  torecover outstafiding money owed to the Grantor.

RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES
Nothing expressed or implied in this Document shall be construed as:
(a) constituting the parties as partners or joint venturers;

(b) conferring on the Concessionaire any right of exclusive occupation or use of the
Site;

(c) granting any estate or interest in the Site to the Concessionaire;

(d)  preventing the Grantor from granting other concessions, whether similar or not, to
other persons;

(e) derogating from the rights of the Grantor and the public to have access across the
Site or the Land.
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OFFENCES

Where any breach of this Concession by the Concessionaire also constitutes an offence
under the Conservation Act 1987 or any of the Acts listed in the First Schedule to that
Act:

(a) no waiver or failure to act by the Grantor under this Document is to preclude the
Grantor from prosecuting the Concessionaire; and

(b)  no failure by the Grantor to prosecute the Concessionaire is to preclude the
Grantor from exercising the Grantor’s remedies under this Document; and

(c) any action of the Grantor in prosecuting the Concessionaire is,not to preclude the
Grantor from exercising the Grantor’s remedies under this DoCument.

SEVERABILITY

Any illegality, or invalidity or unenforceability of anyprovision in this Document is not

to affect the legality, validity or enforceability of afy dther provisions.

ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING

Except as provided by legislation, this\Document and any written variation agreed by the

parties contain the entire understanding between the parties with reference to the subject

matter of this Document and there is no other agreement, representation or warranty

whether it is expressed or implied which in any way extends, defines or otherwise relates

to the provisions of this Doeument.

VARIATIONS

The provistens of section 17ZC of the Conservation Act 1987 apply to all variations
sought by, the Concessionaire and to any applications for extension of the Term.

the'Grantor may vary any conditions of this Document if the variation is necessary:

(a) to deal with significant adverse effects of the Activity that were not reasonably
foreseeable at the time this Permit was granted; or

(b) because the information made available to the Grantor by the Concessionaire for
the purposes of the Concessionaire’s application contained inaccuracies which
materially influenced the decision to grant the Permit and the effects of the
Activity permitted by this Document require more appropriate conditions.

The Concessionaire is to be bound by every such variation.
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35.0 GUARANTEE

35.1 If the Grantor notifies the Concessionaire in writing that the Grantor requires this
Document to be guaranteed by a third party the following clauses are to apply.

35.2  Subject to clause 35.1 and in consideration of the Grantor entering into this Document at
the Guarantor’s request the Guarantor:

(a)

(b)

guarantees payment of the Concession Fee and the performance by the
Concessionaire of the covenants in this Document; and

indemnifies the Grantor against any loss the Grantor might suffer should the
Document be lawfully disclaimed or abandoned by any liquidator,/receiver or
other persons.

35.3 Subject to clause 35.1 the Guarantor covenants with the Grantor.that;

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

no release, delay, or other indulgence given by the Grantor to the Concessionaire
to the Concessionaire’s successors or assigns or.any other thing whereby the
Guarantor would have been released had the Guarantor been merely a surety is to
release, prejudice, or affect the liability ,of the Guarantor as a Guarantor or as
indemnifer;

as between the Guarantor and Grantor the Guarantor may, for all purposes, be
treated as the Concessionaire andvthe Grantor is under no obligation to take
proceedings against the Cencessionaire before taking proceedings against the
Guarantor;

the guarantee is forthé\benefit of and may be enforced by any person entitled for
the time being to reeeive the Concession Fee;

any assignmefit of this Document and any Concession Fee Review in accordance
with this Doeument are not to release the Guarantor from liability;

should there be more than one Guarantor the liability of each Guarantor under this
Guarantee is to be joint and several.

36.0 ,<CO-SITING

3671) The Concessionaire must, if required by the Grantor, allow Co-Siting on the Site or the
Land immediately adjoining the Site ( but contained within the Reserves mentioned in
Item 1 Schedule I ) except when a Concessionaire demonstrates to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Grantor that the Co-Siting by a third party:

(2)

(b)
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would impact on the ability of the Concessionaire to conduct its Concession
Activity; or

would result in a substantial change to the Concession Activity carried out by the
Concessionaire on the Site.
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36.2 The Grantor will be entitled to require the Concessionaire to obtain at the
Concessionaire’s expense a report prepared by an independent consultant acceptable to
the Grantor confirming the matter specified in clause 36.1.

36.3 For the avoidance of doubt, a Co-Sitee permitted on the Site must enter into a separate
agreement with the Grantor in terms of which the Co-Sitee will be required to pay a fee to
the Grantor to conduct an Activity on the Site. This separate agreement will not contain
provisions that conflict with the Concessionaire’s rights and obligations in relation téo the
Site.

Signed by :John Gardiner
Area Manager — Whangarei
Department of Conservation

for and on behalf of

the Minister of Conservation
pursuant to a written delegation
in the presence of :

Witness (signature)

Witness (print name)

Occupation

Address

Signed by :Cape Brett/Walkway Ltd

Director:

Director : -

Director:

as Concessionaire
in the presence of :

Witness (signature)

Witness (print name) :
Occupation :
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Address :
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SCHEDULE 1

1. Land: Walking tracks through Whangamumu, Te Toroa , Deep Water Cove and
Manawahuna Scenic Reserves as indicated in red on map attached.

2. Concession Activity: Guided day walks.

3. Term: Five ( 5) years commencing on 1 October 2001

4. Final Expiry Date: 30 September 2006

5. Concession Fee:
For the twelve month period from 1 October 2001
the fee will be plus gst

6. Concession Fee Instalments{ half yearly in arrears

7. Concession Fee Payment Date: 1 April and 1 October

8. Penalty Interest Rate: 2 per cent above the Westpac Trust indicator lending rate.

9. Concession Fee Review Date: 1 October 2002 and then 1 October 2004 in accordance

with clause 7.0
10.  Public Liability General Indemnity Cover:for $1,000,000
11. Public Liability Forest & Rural Fire Extension: $250,000
12= < /Statutory Liability:not applicable
13(a) Other Types of Insurance: not applicable
13(b) Amounts Insured for Other Types of Insurances: not applicable
14.  Environmental Monitoring Contribution: $300 pa effective from 1 October 2002.

15. Address for Notices:

Permit- Cape Brett
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(a) Grantor: Northland Conservator, Department of Conservation, PO Box 842,

Whangarei
(b) Concessionaire: Cape Brett Walkway Ltd, ¢/- Mr R Witehira, PO Box 44. Russell

0255

Permit- Cape Brett
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SCHEDULE 2

Not applicabl
Naf

Community Service Contribution
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SCHEDULE 3

Special Conditions

1. That Grantor does not guarantee accomodation at the Cape Brett Hut . In this regard the
Concessionaire to make prior booking for accomodation required and pay the hut fee perlperson
applying from time to time to the Field Centre at the Department of Conservation, Russell . The
present hut fee rate is $8.00 per night adults , $4.00 per night children ( 15 years and under ).
This fee is in addition to the fee outlined in Item 5 Schedule 1.

2. That maximum number of bunks that the Concessionaire requires at any-ene time is limited to
eight ( 8 ) and that the maximum consecutive nights in any one stay is Jimited to four ( 4 )

3. The Concessionaire shall submit to the Grantor no later than 1 March of each year record of
activity forms for the previous twelve months detailing the number of clients on each trip
together with time duration on the Land , the Land visited on,that trip and the dates when the
Land was visited. A record of activity form shall be submitted showing nil activity if the
Concession Activity in not undertaken in any particularyear.

4. That the Concessionaire adopt a 1:10 maximum guide ration.

Permit- Cape Brett



File: PAC 01-06-27

19 April 2023

Cape Brett Walkways Ltd
PO Box 149
RUSSELL 0242

peor

Re: Concessions — Guided Walks Various Bay of Islands locations

You may be aware that your Concession for guided walks has dcendition that allows
the Department to review the concession fee payable. The dates.for the review are 1
October 2009 and 31 December 2009 respectively.

I appreciate that you are not currently operating but’am=writing to advise you that in
the event of recommencing operating your concession activity, there would be no
change to the concession fee.

If you have any queries please do not hesitate to contact me on [J¢AIEY M or email
msheild@doc.govt.nz.

Yours sincerely

s9(2)(a)

for. Conservator

Northland Conservancy 517543
PO Box 842, 149-151 Bank Street, Whangarei, NZ
Telephone (09) 470-3300; Fax (09) 470-3301. DX AP24559



Concession number: NO-20728-GUI

DATED 27% J-L/i /u] ;2007
J

Between

MINISTER OF CONSERVATION
(""the Grantor')

and

CAPE BRETFT WALKWAYS

("'the Concessionaire'')

CONCESSION DOCUMENT
(PERMIT)

RECEIVED
PEPT OF CONSERVATION

l Department of Conservation

Te Papa Atawbai 17 JuL 2007

NORTHLAND CONSERVANCY OFFICE

154901 Cape Brett



THIS PERMIT is made this 2] day of Jen

-2

20 07

J

PARTIES:

1.

MINISTER OF CONSERVATION, ("the Grantor")

2. CAPE BRETT WALKWAYS LTD, ("the Concessionaire")

BACKGROUND

A. The Reserve described in Schedule 1 as the Land is vested in the'Grantor;

B. Section 59A of the Reserves Act 1977 authorises the Gtanfor, in accordance with Part
IIIB of the Conservation Act 1987, to grant a ConcessiOfr in respect of a Reserve vested
in the Crown including a reserve vested in the Crown/but controlled and managed by an
administering body under any of sections 28, 29,30, 35 and 36 of the Reserves Act 1977

3 The Concessionaire wishes to carry out the Concession Activity on the Land subject to
the terms and conditions of this Documént.

D. The Grantor is satisfied that the réquirements of Part III B of the Conservation Act 1987
have been met.

OPERATIVE PARTS

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.0 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1

In this-PeCument, unless the context otherwise requires:

“Activity” has the same meaning as "Activity" in section 2 of the Conservation Act 1987,
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



THE BODY OF THIS PERMIT COULD NOT BE SCANNED

PLEASE REFER TO THE DOCUMENT NUMBER SHOWN AT THE.FOOT OF

FOLLOWING PAGE TO ACCESS THE PERMIT STANDARD CONDITIONS

documentl-m




Signed by :
Area Manager, Bay offIslay

for and on behalf of

the Minister of Conservation le/
pursuant to a written delegation q

in the presence of : N

Witness (signature) ﬂffxﬂe/ﬂ . C)&

Witness (print name) POLLA’ lt ,{C J\/} sid e,H‘ L

Occupation Q&tﬁg’f I\O
Address lcesleos §?~
N3
Signed by: CAPE BRETT WALKWA!@
A\

Director
/,

Director

as Concessionaire & /

in the presenc@%
Witness @m)

Witn@print name) : \ Qﬂ(\'\ fi (\\ﬂm .QI%L&II’

%%ation : Q{ OG\(Q W&(‘ej{\
\g/?!;ddress : \\ &Q&QS&X{} \Sh Q()j\{ ﬂ)\‘d‘ '
&
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4.

B9 (2)(

13(a)

P3(b)

SCHEDULE 1

Land: Walking tracks through Whangamumu, Te Toroa, Deep Water Cove and
Manawahuna Scenic Reserves as indicated in red on map attached.

Concession Activity: Guided day walks.
Term: Five (5) years commencing on 1 October 2006

Final Expiry Date: 30 September 2011

ncession Fee:
[

Concession Fee Instalments: half yeagly in arrears

Concession Fee Payment Date: 20th April and 20th October

Penalty Interest Rate: 2 pertent above the Westpac Trust indicator lending rate,
Concession Fee Réview Date: 1 October 2009

Public Liability General Indemnity Cover: for $1,000,000

Public Liability Forest & Rural Fire Extension: for $250,000.00

Statutory Liability: not applicable

Other Types of Insurance: not applicable

Amounts Insured for Other Types of Insurances: not applicable

Environmental Monitoring Contribution: $300.00 plus GST pa payable upon receipt
of GST invoice issued by the Grantor.

154901 Cape Brett
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Address for Notices:

(a) Grantor: Northland Conservator, Department of Conservation, PO Box 842,
Whangarei

(b)  Concessionaire: Cape Brett Walkways Ltd, PO Box 149, Russell \9

154901 Cape Brett
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SCHEDULE 2

Community Service Contribution

Nil



L

<7 .

SCHEDULE 3

Special Conditions

. That Grantor does not guarantee accommodation at the Cape Brett Hut. In this regard the

Concessionaire to make prior booking for accommodation required and to pay the hut fee
per person applying from time to time to the Field Centre at the Department of
Conservation, Russell. The present hut fee rate is $12.00 per night adults, $6.00 per night
children (15 years and under.) This fee is in addition to the fee outlined in Iteni 5
Schedule I.

That maximum number of bunks that the Concessionaire requires at any-ene time is
limited to eight (8) and that the maximum consecutive nights in any one stay is limited to
four (4).

The Concessionaire shall submit to the Grantor no later thaita¥' April and 5" October of
each year an Activity Form for the previous six months-detailing the number of clients on
each trip together with time duration on the Land, the'hand visited on that trip and the
dates when the Land was visited. An Activity Formh shéll be submitted showing nil
activity if the Concession Activity is not undertaken in any particular year.

That the Concessionaire maintains a 1:10 waximum guide ratio.
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SCHEDULE IV
DECLARATION OF CONCESSION ACTIVITY FEE

Cape Brett Walkways Ltd (15021-GUI)
Northland Conservancy

Fee Return for Period: to
[ Month Noof | 1-4 hour | Total 1-4| No of Over 4 Total Total for Sites Visited & Numbers of Visits each month
clients 1; fee per | hourfee | clients | hours fee | over 4 Month (Please use separate prage if more space required)
4 hours client | S over 4 | per client | hour fee $
‘ hours S
.. QOctober -
: November ——
" December |
Janunryi" -
}Febrﬁiry' - i
|
i March |
| April -
‘ May -]-
June 717 7‘77
July ﬂ!
N .
August |
- | R
 September | [
o - Sub-Total -
Plus Gst
s9(2)(i) o
Total
(inc GST

Please forwayd.te: Northland Conservancy Office PO Box 842 Whangarei
151947
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File: PAC 01-06-27

Cape Brett Walkways Ltd
PO Box 149
RUSSELL

peor

SUBJECT: CONCESSION APPLICATION

Thank you for lodging your application to vary your Cape Brett concession. [ can
formally advise you that the Department ‘accepts’ your application andithat I will be
your case manager. We have made an initial assessment of your, application and
respond as follows.

Application Classification

Your application has been classified as one which can b€ tonsidered as a Concession
Permit Low Impact (non-notified), under Section [ 7Q. of the Conservation Act.
Public advertising will therefore not be required.

Estimate of Processing Time and Cost

I can inform you that our estimated costs, to assess the various segments of your
application will be plus GST.Ifat any stage further costs are incurred, we
will inform you in advance of what they,are likely to be.

It is important for you to be aware that if, at any stage, you wish to withdraw your
application, you must pay the,costs incurred by the Department up to that point. In
addition, if your application-is unsuccessful, the money paid to the Department to
cover the processing costs will not be refunded.

Additional Information

To ensure your application is complete, the Department may request additional
information at any stage during processing. Information requested will relate to
sectionsdl 7§ or 17U of the Conservation Act 1987. From our initial assessment of
your application we can confirm that the application contains enough information to
be\processed at this stage. Thank you for your efforts in this regard.

If'you have any questions about the information contained in this letter, or the
application process, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours faithfully

9(2)(a)

for Conservator Northland

164839
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Concession number: NO-20728-GUI

DATED

Between

MINISTER OF CONSERVATION
(""the Grantor")

and

CAPE BRETT WALKWAYS

("'the Concessionaire')

CONCESSION DOCUMENT
(PERMIT)

'1 Department of Conservation
‘/ Te Papa Atawbai

154901 Cape Brett



THIS PERMIT is made this day of
PARTIES:
1. MINISTER OF CONSERVATION, ("the Grantor")

2. CAPE BRETT WALKWAYS LTD, ("the Concessionaire")

BACKGROUND

A. The Reserve described in Schedule 1 as the Land is vested in the Grantor;

B. Section 59A of the Reserves Act 1977 authorises the Grantor, in accordance with Part
IIIB of the Conservation Act 1987, to grant a ConceSsion in respect of a Reserve vested
in the Crown including a reserve vested in the Crown but controlled and managed by an
administering body under any of sections 28, 29530, 35 and 36 of the Reserves Act 1977;

C. The Concessionaire wishes to carry out.the Concession Activity on the Land subject to
the terms and conditions of this Document,

D. The Grantor is satisfied that the fequitements of Part III B of the Conservation Act 1987
have been met.

OPERATIVE PARTS

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.0

1.1

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In thissDocument, unless the context otherwise requires:

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

“Concession Fee” means the amount specified in Item 5 of Schedule 1 and charged by
the Grantor for the Concessionaire's right to carry out the Concession Activity on the Site.
It includes any variation in that amount following a Concession Fee Review.

“Concession Fee Payment Date” means the date specified in Item 7 of Schedule 1 on
which each instalment of the Concession Fee falls due for payment.

“Concession Fee Review” means a review of the Concession Fee determined in
accordance with clause 7 of this Document.

“Concession Fee Review Date” means the date specified in Item 9 of Schedule 1 on
which the Concession Fee Review occurs being at 3 year interval§icalculated from the

date of commencement of this Document.

“Conservation” has the same meaning as "Conseryation" in section 2 of the
Conservation Act 1987.

“Conservation Area” has the same meaning as, “Conservation area in section 2 of the
Conservation Act 1987.

“Co-Site” means the use of the Site or.the Concessionaire’s facilities on the Site by a
third party for an Activity and “CesSitee” and “Co-Siting” have corresponding

meanings.

“Department” means the Depattment of Conservation established by section 5 of the
Conservation Act 1987.

“Director-General” means the Director-General of Conservation.

“Document” means this Permit and any subsequent amendments and all schedules,
annexures, andsplans attached to it.

“Final Expiry Date” means the date specified in Item 4 of Schedule 1.

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

“Penalty Interest Rate” means the rate specified in Item 8 of Schedule 1.

“Permit” has the same meaning as “Permit” in section 2 of the Conservation Act 1987
and for purposes of this Document is the Permit granted under this Document by the

154901 Cape Brett



1.2

1.3

2.0

-4

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

“Term” means the period of time specified in Item 3 of Schedule 1 during which‘this
Document operates. It includes, where relevant, any period of renewal of the Term.

“Working Days” means days on which the registered banks are open for general banking
business in Wellington.

In this Document unless the context otherwise requires:

(a)

(b)
(©)

(d)

(e)

89

(2
(h)

(1)

a reference to a party is a reference to a party to this Deciment and includes that
party's successors in title;

schedules and annexures form part of this Document and have effect accordingly;

words appearing in this Document whiel also appear in Schedule 1 mean and
include the details appearing after them in*that Schedule;

a provision of this Document totbe performed by two or more persons binds those
persons jointly and severally;

a reference to a persow inCludes an individual, a body corporate, an association of
persons (whether cerpOrate or not), a trust, or an agency of State or of the Crown
(in each case whetherOr not having separate legal personality);

words in a gingular number include the plural and vice versa;
words“mporting a gender include all other genders;

teferences to a statute or statutory provision, or order or regulation made under it,
iniclude that statute, provision, or regulation as amended, modified, re-enacted or
replaced from time to time whether before or after the date of this Document;

where the Grantor's consent or approval is expressly required under a provision of
this Document, the Concessionaire must seek the consent or approval of the
Grantor for each separate occasion it is required notwithstanding that the Grantor
has granted consent or approval for a like purpose on a prior occasion.

Words used in the Background to this Document have the same meaning given to them in
clause 1.1.

GRANT OF PERMIT
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2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

-5-

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

The Permit is for the Term specified in Item 3 of Schedule 1.

The Term and all renewals, if any, end on the Final Expiry Date specified in Item 4 of
Schedule 1.

SURRENDER OF DOCUMENT

If the Concessionaire wishes to terminate this Document.before the expiry of the Term
the Concessionaire must give the Grantor 3 months’ rotie€ in writing.

The Grantor must accept the Concessionaire's qiefice of termination but in doing so may
impose whatever terms and conditions the Gtantor considers appropriate, including the
matters referred to in clause 6.2.

CONCESSION FEE

The Concessionaire must pay, to the Grantor in advance and in the manner directed by the
Grantor the Concession Fee/plus GST in the instalments and on the Concession Fee
Payment Dates specified in Items 5, 6 and 7 of Schedule 1.

If the Concessionaire defaults in payment of the Concession Fee for 14 days after a
Concession ,Fe¢~Payment Date the Concessionaire is to pay interest on the unpaid
Concession¥ee from the Concession Fee Payment Date until the date of payment at the
Penalty.Interest Rate specified in Item 8 of Schedule 1.

OTHER CHARGES

In addition to the Concession Fee the Concessionaire must pay the following charges
("Other Charges") on demand and in the manner directed by the Grantor:

() all rates, levies, taxes, duties, assessments, charges and other outgoings which
may be charged, levied or reasonably assessed or which may become payable by
virtue of the Concessionaire’s use of the Site or the carrying on of the Concession
Activity;
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6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0

7.1

-6 -

(b) all costs in relation to the supply of water, sewage, drainage and rubbish disposal
which are not otherwise included in any charges or assessments made by any
authority or by the Grantor;

(c) all costs incurred by the Grantor in providing an annual building warrant of fitness
to any territorial authority, including any costs paid to an independent qualified
person for any report establishing or re-establishing compliance with a
compliance schedule. If any work is required to any structure or facility of the
Grantor’s on the Site in order to obtain a new building warrant of fitness}. the
Grantor is to pay the cost of that work subject to the Concessionaire's obligations
under clause 10.

If the Concessionaire surrenders this Document with the consent of the.Grantor, the
Concessionaire will continue to be liable for and must pay to the Grantor on demand in
respect of its use of the Site and its conduct of the Concession Activity-all Other Charges
which may be due for the current payment period even though, that this period may not
expire until after the date of surrender.

Where the Grantor or Director-General has provided a.¢ommunity service, benefit or
facility for the benefit of the Concessionaire under section 17ZH of the Conservation Act
1987, the Concessionaire must pay the Grantor whatever contribution the Grantor
determines as specified in Schedule 2.

The Concessionaire must pay all charges for* electric power, water supply, geothermal
energy, telephone rental and other utilitiesvSupplied to the Site. The Grantor will not be
liable for any cost incurred in re-establishing the supply of any of these utilities in the
event of any of them becoming untavailable for any reason.

CONCESSION FEE REVIEW

The Grantor will review the Concession Fee on the Concession Fee Review Dates in the
following manner:

(a) the “Grantor will commence the review not earlier than 3 months before a
Cencession Fee Review Date and no later than 9 months following the
Concession Fee Review Date by giving written notice to the Concessionaire.

(b) subject to clause 7.1(e), the notice must specify the Concession Fee which the
Grantor considers to be the market value for the Concession Activity as at the
Concession Fee Review Date having regard to the matters specified in section
17Y(2) of the Conservation Act 1987.

(c) if, within 28 days of receipt of the Grantor's notice, the Concessionaire gives
written notice to the Grantor that the Concessionaire disputes the proposed new
Concession Fee the new Concession Fee is to be determined in accordance with
clause 7. 2 (a) or (b).
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7.2
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(d) if the Concessionaire does not give notice to the Grantor under clause 7.1 (c) the
Concessionaire will be deemed to have accepted the Concession Fee specified in
the Grantor's notice.

(e) notwithstanding clause 7.1(b), the new Concession Fee so determined or accepted
must not be less than the Concession Fee payable during the year preceding the
particular Concession Fee Review Date and will be the Concession Fee payable
by the Concessionaire from the Concession Fee Review Date.

() until determination of the new Concession Fee, the Concession Fee payable'by) the
Concessionaire from the Concession Fee Review Date is to be the Coneession Fee
specified in the Grantor's notice. On determination of the new Congession Fee an
adjustment is to be made and paid, either by the Grantor or by the.Cencessionaire,
whichever is applicable.

Immediately the Concessionaire gives notice to the Grantor.under clause 7.1(c) the
parties will endeavour to agree on a new Concession Fee. 4fithe parties are unable to
reach agreement within 28 days the new Concession Fee is to/be determined either:

(a) by one party giving written notice to the othet requiring the new Concession Fee
to be determined by arbitration; or, if the partics agree,

(b) by registered valuers acting as experts and not as arbitrators as follows:

(1) each party will appoint &valder and give written notice of the appointment
to the other party within'l4 days of the parties agreeing to determine the
new Concession Fée by this means.

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

(iii) , “before commencing their determination the respective valuers must
appoint an umpire who need not be a registered valuer.

(iv)  the valuers are to determine the new Concession Fee which they consider
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

(v) in determining the Concession Fee the valuers or umpire are to disregard
the annual cost to the Concessionaire to maintain or provide Access to the
Land.

(vi)  each party is to be given the opportunity to make written or verbal
representations or submissions to the valuers or the umpire subject to such
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8.0

8.1

8.2

9.0

9.1

9.2

(vii)

-8-

reasonable time and other limits as the valuers or the umpire may
prescribe.

the valuers or the umpire must have regard to any such representations but
will not be bound by them.

(c) the valuers or umpire must give written notice to the parties once they have
determined the new Concession Fee. The notice is to provide how the costs of the
determination are to be borne and be binding on the parties.

d @

(i)

(iii)

if a Concession Fee Review date is postponed because of a moratorium
imposed by law the Concession Fee Review Date is to take place at the
date the moratorium is lifted or so soon afterwards as is practicable; and

the Concession Fee Review will establish the niarket value for the
Concession Activity as at that date instead of the'date fixed under clause
7.1 having regard to the matters specified”in Section 17Y(2) of the
Conservation Act 1987 but in no case is the new-Concession Fee to be less
than the Concession Fee payable during«the ‘year preceding the particular
Concession Fee Review Date; and

each subsequent Concession Fge Review date will take place in
accordance with the date fixed'ifr¢lause 7.1.

CONCESSION ACTIVITY

The Concessionaire is not tor ise the Site for any purpose other than the Concession

Activity.

The Concessionaire must,as a condition of this Document:

(a) take out and maintain and pay all fees for all licences, permits, authorisations,
consefts~(including resource consents under the provisions of the Resource
Management Act 1991), and renewals (""the Permissions") as may be necessary for
the proper conduct of the Concession Activity;

(b)\./ not do or suffer to be done any act whereby these Permissions may be forfeited or
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

10

11.2

COMPLIANCE
The Concessionaire will comply where relevant:

(a) with the provisions of any conservation management strategy or conservation
management plan as required by section 17W(7) of the Conservation Act 1987
pursuant to Part IIIA of the Conservation Act 1987 or Part IIA of the Reserves Act
1977 or any general policy statement or management plan under section 44 645
of the National Parks Act 1980, which ever is appropriate to the Site, together
with any amendment or review of any policy, strategy or plan whether approved
before, on, or after the date on which this Document takes effect; and

(b)  with the Conservation Act 1987, the Reserves Act 1977, the National Parks Act
1980 and any other statute, ordinance, regulation, bylaw,~or* other enactment
(collectively the “Legislation”) affecting or relating to.the Site, or affecting or

relating to the Concession Activity, including any“bylaws made under the
Reserves Act 1977 or the National Parks Act 1980,

The Concessionaire must comply with all conditionséimposed by the Grantor in granting
this Document.

(a) A breach or contravention by the.C€orncessionaire of a relevant conservation
management strategy, conservation management plan, management plan or
general policy statement will betdeeémed to be a breach of this Document.

(b) A breach or contraventiom\by/the Concessionaire of the Legislation affecting or
relating to the Site or affecting or relating to the Concession Activity will be
deemed to be a breach of this Document.

If the Legislation requires the Grantor to spend money on the Grantor’s own structures,
facilities or alteration$ on the Site, the Grantor may charge, in addition to the Concession
Fee, an annual sum‘equal to 15% of the amount spent by the Grantor.

If the Legislation requires the Grantor to spend any money on structures, facilities or
alteratiens Jon the Site which the Grantor considers unreasonable, the Grantor may
determine this Document and any dispute as to whether or not the amount is unreasonable
is to.be determined in accordance with clause 27.

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

discretion, impose any reasonable terms and conditions, including a review of the
Concession Fee, as the Grantor considers appropriate under this clause; and may also
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11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

12.0

12.1

-10 -

decline the grant of such approval after consideration of the relevant conservation and
environmental issues.

The Concessionaire must pay to the Grantor all costs associated with applications for
approval under this clause determined at the standard rates then applying in the

Department for cost recovery of staff time and expenses.

The Concessionaire must, upon request by the Grantor, submit written engineering ©r
building plans and details to the Grantor for approval before :

(a) erecting or altering any structure on the Site;
(b)  bringing any structure on to the Site;

(c) installing any facilities on the Site; or

(d) altering the Site in any way.

The Concessionaire must not commence any work on the.Site until the Grantor has given
written approval.

When undertaking any work under this clause,th¢ Concessionaire must comply with all
statutory requirements including obtaining“building consents and code compliance
certificates under the Building Act 1991.

The Concessionaire is to keep and /maintain its structures and facilities on, or alterations
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
rodent Anfestation occurring in or emanating from the Site or any structure or
facility on the Site, and if considered necessary by the Grantor, engage a pest
¢Xterminator approved by the Grantor;

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

(e) keep and maintain all building systems and any structure on the Site in accordance
with the requirements of any compliance schedule;
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) retain and make available to any territorial authority and any other person with a
right to inspect any structures on the Site under the Building Act 1991 a copy of
the compliance schedule together with the written reports relating to compliance
with the compliance schedule over the previous two year period.

PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT

Except as approved in writing by the Grantor the Concessionaire will not, whether'by act
or omission:

(a) interfere with, remove, damage, or endanger the natural features;.anhimals, plants,
or historic resources on the Site; or

(b) bring any plants, animals, or firearms on to the Site; or

(c) deposit on the Site debris, rubbish or other dangeréus or unsightly matter, or
contaminate any water body on the Site; or

(d)  pile or store materials in any place on the, Site where it may obstruct the public or
create a nuisance; or

(e) conduct any noxious, noisome, dangerous or offensive activity on the Site;

The Concessionaire will keep the Site in'a clean and tidy condition and free of weeds and
all organisms specified as pests in‘a‘relevant pest management strategy.

The Concessionaire must make adequate provision for suitable sanitary facilities for the
Site if required by the Grantet and for the disposal of all refuse material and is to comply
with the reasonable directions of the Grantor in regard to these matters.

The Concessionaire will keep all structures, facilities and land alterations and their
surroundings “n“a clean and tidy condition. If reasonably required by the Grantor the
Concessionaire will paint all structures and facilities in colours specified in writing by the
Grantor,and with paints of a type approved in writing by the Grantor.

If, during the Term, the Concessionaire removes a structure or facility from the Site the
Concessionaire will, unless the Grantor indicates otherwise in writing, repair and make
good at its own expense all damage which may have been done by the removal and will
leave the Site in a clean and tidy condition.

Should the Concessionaire fail to repair and restore the damage within 6 months of the
removal of a structure or facility or such further time as the Grantor may approve in
writing, the Grantor may undertake whatever works and operations are necessary to effect
the same and may recover from the Concessionaire any costs and expenses incurred in
doing it as a debt due by the Concessionaire to the Grantor.

The Concessionaire must:
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take all reasonable precautions to ensure no fire hazards arise from its carrying out
of the Concession Activity or from any act or neglect of its employees,

contractors, invitees or agents;

not light or permit to be lit any fire on the Site without the written permission of
the Grantor in which event the following provisions are to apply:

(1) the Concessionaire may light or use at a campsite a fire in the open aiyif
the fire is an approved camp fire and is fuelled by dead wood only;

(i)  an approved camp fire is any fire lit for the purpose of camping, cooking,
comfort, or warmth;

(iii)  an approved camp fire may not be lit:

(aa) within 3 metres of a tree or place wmderneath overhanging
vegetation;

(bb)  within 3 metres of a log or dry vegetation;

(cc) unless the Concessionaire, ¢lears all combustible material away
from around the base of theapproved camp fire before lighting it;

(dd)  where there are notices or other advertising limiting the lighting of
fires to a particul@rtéceptacle or to a particular place;

(ee) during a prohibited fire season

(iv)  for the purpese ‘of this paragraph “open air” has the same meaning ascribed
to it in the Forest and Rural Fires Act 1977

not store or permit to be stored fuels or other combustible materials on the Site
without the written permission of the Grantor. In that event storage of fuels and
combustible materials must be in accordance with the provisions of the Hazardous
Substances and New Organisms Act 1996;

comply with the Grantor's requirements for fire warning and safety equipment and
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
acts; and must provide the Grantor with details of the circumstances surrounding such
incidents.

ADVERTISING
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The Concessionaire must not erect or display any signs or advertising on the Site without
the prior written approval of the Grantor. At the expiry or termination of this Concession
the Concessionaire must remove all signs and advertising material and make good any
damage caused by the removal.

Where required by the Grantor, the Concessionaire must ensure that all its advertising and
promotional material specifies that it is carrying out the Concession Activity under a
Concession granted by the Grantor on land administered by the Department.

If required by the Lessor in writing the Concessionaire must include informatign-in its
advertising and promotional material which assists its clients to understand the féatures
and values of the natural and historic resources of the Site and the surrounding area.

In preparing such information the Concessionaire must obtain informationl from and have
regard to the views of tangata whenua.

EMPLOYMENT OF STAFF

The Concessionaire must ensure that the Concession Activity is conducted at all times by
a person or persons suitably trained and qualified t@ carry out the Concession Activity.

The Concessionaire must provide the Grantor*with evidence of the competency and
qualifications of its employees if the Grantor so requests.

The Concessionaire must comply with'all statutes relating to employment of staff.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Concessionaire is\foscarry out the Concession Activity on the Site in a safe and
reliable manner and'must comply with:

(a) the Héalth-and Safety in Employment Act 1992 and its regulations; and

(b) all_other statutes, regulations and bylaws and all notices and requisitions of any
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
(a) take all reasonable steps to protect the safety of all persons present on the Site and
must, where necessary, erect protective signposts warning the public of any

dangers they may encounter as a result of the Concessionaire’s operations;

(b)  take all reasonable steps to eliminate any dangers to the public and must clearly
and permanently mark any that remain and of which the Concessionaire is aware.
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Before commencing the Concession Activity the Concessionaire must, if required by the
Grantor, prepare a safety plan and have it audited by a suitably qualified person approved
by the Grantor.

The Concessionaire must not commence the Concession Activity until:

(a) the person appointed to audit the safety plan has certified the safety plan is
suitable for the Concession Activity; and

(b)  the Concessionaire supplies the Grantor with a copy of the safety plan cestified
under clause 16.5(a).

Receipt of the certified safety plan by the Grantor is not in any way.to limit the
obligations of the Concessionaire under clause 16 and is not to be constriied as implying
any responsibility or liability on the part of the Grantor.

TEMPORARY SUSPENSION

The Grantor may temporarily suspend this Documefit/if; in the opinion of the Grantor,
there is a temporary risk to public safety or the, safety of the Department's staff or the
safety of other Concessionaires whether arising\from natural events such as earthquake,
land slip, volcanic activity, or flood or whetlier arising in any other way including the
activities of the Concessionaire, its emplayees, clients or invitees.

If in the opinion of the Grantor the activities of the Concessionaire, its employees, clients
or invitees are having or may have an’adverse effect on the environment and the Grantor
is of the opinion that the effeet can be avoided, remedied or mitigated to an extent
satisfactory to the Grantor,\\the Grantor may suspend this Concession until the
Concessionaire remedies, aveids or mitigates the adverse impact to the satisfaction of the
Grantor.

The Grantor may Suspend this Concession while the Grantor investigates any of the
circumstance$contemplated in clauses 17.1 and 17.2 and also while the Grantor
investigatesvapy potential breach or possible offence by the Concessionaire whether or
not related to the Concession Activity under the Conservation Act 1987 or any of the
Actsunéntioned in the First Schedule of that Act of which the Grantor has become aware.

The word “investigates” in clause 17.3 includes the laying of charges and awaiting the
decision of the Court.

During any period of temporary suspension the Concession Fee payable by the
Concessionaire is to abate in fair proportion to the loss of use by the Concessionaire of
the Site.

The Grantor is not to be liable to the Concessionaire for any loss sustained by the

Concessionaire by reason of the suspension of the Concession under clause 17 including
loss of profits.
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ASSIGNMENT

The Concessionaire is not to transfer, subpermit, assign, mortgage or otherwise dispose of
the Concessionaire's interest under this Document or any part of it without the prior
written consent of the Grantor. The Grantor may in the Grantor’s discretion decline any
application for consent under this clause.

Sections 17P, 17S, 17T, 17U, 17W, 17X, 17ZB and 17ZC of the Conservation Act 1987
apply to applications for consent under this clause unless the Grantor, in the Grantor’s
discretion, decides otherwise.

If the Grantor gives consent under this clause the Concessionaire is to remain liable to
observe and perform the terms and conditions of this Document througheutthe Term and
is to procure from the transferee, subpermitee, or assignee a covenant,to be bound by the
terms and conditions of this Document.

The Concessionaire must pay the costs reasonably incurred by, the Grantor incidental to
any application for consent, whether or not such consent is, granted.

Any change in the shareholding of the Concessionairé altering the effective control of the
Concessionaire will be deemed to be an assignmént and will require the consent of the
Grantor.

TERMINATION

The Grantor may terminate this “Concession by 14 days notice in writing to the
Concessionaire if:

(a) the Concession, Fée~or any other money payable to the Grantor under this
Document is in“@rrears and unpaid for 14 days after any of the days appointed for
payment whether it has been lawfully demanded or not; or

(b) (1) the Concessionaire breaches any terms of this Document; and
(1) the Grantor has notified the Concessionaire in writing of the breach; and

(iii)  the Concessionaire does not rectify the breach within 7 days of receiving
notification; or

(c) the Concessionaire ceases to conduct the Concession Activity or, in the reasonable
opinion of the Grantor, the services provided by the Concessionaire are manifestly
inadequate; or

(d) the Concessionaire is convicted of an offence, whether or not related to the
Concession Activity, under the Conservation Act 1987 or any of the Acts listed in
the First Schedule to that Act; or the Health and Safety in Employment Act 1982;
or the Building Act 1991; or the Resource Management Act 1991; or the
Biosecurity Act 1993; or
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(e) the Concessionaire or the Guarantor is dissolved; or enters into any composition
with or assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or is adjudged bankrupt; or
being a company, has a receiver appointed; or is put into liquidation; or is placed
under statutory management; or has a petition for winding up presented against it;
or is otherwise unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or the estate or interest of
the Concessionaire is made subject to a Writ of Sale or charging order; or the
Concessionaire ceases to function or operate; or

63) there is, in the opinion of the Grantor, a permanent risk to public safety of the
environment whether arising from the conduct of the Concession Activity,orfrom
natural causes such as earthquake, land slip, volcanic activity, flood, or arising in
any other way, whether or not from any breach of the terms of this-Doeument on
the part of the Concessionaire.

If the Grantor terminates the Concession under this clause all rights 8f the Concessionaire
are to cease absolutely; but the Concessionaire is not to be released/from any liability to
pay the Concession Fee or other monies up to the date of termination or for any breach of
any term up to the date of termination.

The Grantor may exercise the Grantor’s right ufder’ this clause to terminate the
Concession notwithstanding any prior waiver or,failure to take action by the Grantor or
any indulgence granted by the Grantor for any niafter or default.

GRANTOR MAY REMEDY CONCESSIONAIRE’S DEFAULT

The Grantor may elect to remedy-at any time without notice any default by the
Concessionaire under this Concession.

The Concessionaire must pay'to the Grantor forthwith on demand all reasonable costs and
expenses incurred by«th€ Grantor, including legal costs and expenses as between solicitor
and client, in remedying such default.

GRANTOR’S DIRECTIONS

The Ceficessionaire must comply with all reasonable notices and directions of the Grantor

conieerning the Concession Activity on the Site or the conduct of any person on the Site
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
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The Concessionaire will indemnify and keep indemnified the Grantor against all claims
made by any person in respect of any injury, loss, or damage, including fire, caused or
suffered as a result of or arising out of any acts or omissions of the Concessionaire, its
employees, agents, contractors, or clients or otherwise caused as a result of its carrying
out the Concession Activity on the Site.

This indemnity is to continue after the expiry or other determination of this Document in
respect of those acts or omissions occurring or arising before its expiry or determination:

Without prejudice to or in any way limiting its liability under clause 23)the
Concessionaire must take out and keep in force during the Term:

(a) a policy of public liability insurance against liability for loss, damage or injury
from any one single accident or event arising out of its conduect ofithe Concession
Activity on the Site and covering:

(1) general indemnity for a sum not less than the dmount specified in Item 10
of Schedule 1; and

(i)  Forest and Rural Fires Act 1977 exténsion for a sum not less than the
amount specified in Item 11 of Schedule 1; and

(b) statutory liability for the amount specified'in Item 12 of Schedule 1; and

(c) such other policy or policies ofiinsurance against any other liability and for such
other sums which the Grantor spgcifies in Item 13 of Schedule 1.

With respect to clause 23.3 the €oncessionaire must provide copy certificates of currency
for the policies of insuranee, before commencing the Concession Activity and on each
renewal of them.

(a) Without prejudice to any other provision of this Document the Concessionaire
will indemnify the Grantor against all damage or loss resulting from any act or
omissien~on the part of the Concessionaire or the Concessionaire's employees,
agentsS,contractors, clients, or invitees;

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
clause 23.6(b), such damage or interference is caused by any wilful act or
omission of the Grantor, the Grantor’s employees, agents or contractors;

(b)  Where the Grantor is found to be liable due to a wilful act or omission, the total
extent of the Grantor’s liability is limited to $1,000,000 in respect of the
Concessionaire's structures and facilities.
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Notwithstanding anything else in clause 23 the Grantor is not liable for any indirect or
consequential loss howsoever caused.

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND LAND REHABILITATION

The Concessionaire must, during the Term, if the Grantor so requests in writing, design¢in
consultation with the Grantor and undertake a programme to monitor and report on-the
environmental effects of the Concessionaire’s use of the Site and conduct, of)the
Concession Activity on the Site.

If the Grantor does not make a request under clause 24.1 the Concessionaire.must, during
the Term if the Grantor so requests in writing, pay to the Granfor the annual
environmental monitoring contribution specified in Item 14 of Schédule 1 to enable the
Grantor to design and undertake a programme to monitor the enyitonmental effects of the
Concessionaire’s conduct of the Concession Activity on the Site,

Subject to any conditions imposed by the Grantor and set-out in Schedule 3, at the expiry,
surrender or termination of this Document, the ConcesSionaire must reinstate the Site to
its condition at the commencement of the Term{and replant the Site with indigenous
vegetation of a similar abundance and diversity,as‘at the commencement of the Term.

EXPIRY OF PERMIT

If the parties have not entered ‘inte’a new agreement by the Final Expiry Date the
Concessionaire accepts that the Grantor has no liability whatsoever for any costs incurred
by the Concessionaire as arestlt of the expiry of this Document.

Upon the expiry or eatlier termination of the Term the Grantor will not be liable to pay
compensation forany Structure, facility or land alteration of the Concessionaire, all of
which, subject to clause 25.4 are to remain the property of the Concessionaire and will be
deemed not té\have become fixtures on the Site.

Subjectite any conditions set out on Schedule 3, at the expiry, surrender or termination of
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

In that case the Grantor will not be liable to pay any compensation to the Concessionaire
for the structures and facilities and may, at the Grantor’s option, remove or destroy or
otherwise dispose of them and recover the costs and expenses of the removal or
destruction from the Concessionaire as a debt due to the Grantor.
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FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party will be liable to the other party for any delay in performance of, or failure to
perform, its obligations (other than a payment of money) under this Document as a result
of any cause beyond its reasonable control.

If the delay or failure continues for at least 28 days either party will be entitled to
terminate this Document by notice in writing.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND ARBITRATION

If a dispute arises between the parties in connection with this Document including
without limitation the interpretation, validity, breach or termination{ of any of its
provisions, the parties will, without prejudice to any other rights or &iititlements they may
have under this Document or otherwise, attempt to resolve the dispute by agreement
using informal dispute resolution techniques such as negotiation, mediation, independent
expert appraisal or any other alternative dispute resolution technique. The rules
governing any such technique adopted are to be agreed between the parties.

If the dispute is not capable of resolution by agreément within 14 days of written notice
by one party to the other (or such further perigd/as the parties may agree to in writing)
either party may refer the dispute to the "Disputes Tribunal, where relevant, or to
arbitration which arbitration is to be cartied out in accordance with the provisions of the
Arbitration Act 1996.

All arbitration proceedings are to‘take place in New Zealand and to be governed by New
Zealand law.

If the parties do not agree-en an arbitrator within 10 working days of a party giving
written notice of the ‘w€quirement to appoint an arbitrator the President of the New
Zealand Law Society(is'to appoint the arbitrator. In either case the arbitrator must not be
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
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(©) in the case of facsimile, on the date of dispatch.

COSTS

The Concessionaire must pay the Grantor's legal costs and expenses of and incidental to
preparing and executing this Document or any extension or variation of this Document.

The Concessionaire must pay in full immediately on demand all costs and fees (including
but not limited to solicitors’ costs and the fees of debt collecting agencies engaged by) the

Grantor) arising out of and associated with steps taken by the Grantor:

(a) to enforce or attempt to enforce the Grantor’s rights and powers’ under this
Document if the Concessionaire is in breach or default;

(b)  to recover outstanding money owed to the Grantor.

RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES
Nothing expressed or implied in this Document shall be construed as:
(a) constituting the parties as partners oroint'venturers;

(b) conferring on the Concessionaite,any right of exclusive occupation or use of the
Site;

(c) granting any estate or interest in the Site to the Concessionaire;

(d)  preventing the Grantet from granting other concessions, whether similar or not, to
other persons;

(e) derogating from the rights of the Grantor and the public to have access across the
Site of\the-Land.

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

(c) any action of the Grantor in prosecuting the Concessionaire is not to preclude the
Grantor from exercising the Grantor’s remedies under this Document.
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SEVERABILITY

Any illegality, or invalidity or unenforceability of any provision in this Document is not
to affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provisions.

ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING

Except as provided by legislation, this Document and any written variation agreed by the
parties contain the entire understanding between the parties with reference-to the subject
matter of this Document and there is no other agreement, representation.or warranty
whether it is expressed or implied which in any way extends, defines or otherwise relates
to the provisions of this Document.

VARIATIONS

The provisions of section 17ZC of the Conservation/Act 1987 apply to all variations
sought by the Concessionaire and to any applications for extension of the Term.

The Grantor may vary any conditions of this\Document if the variation is necessary:

(a) to deal with significant advers¢effécts of the Activity that were not reasonably
foreseeable at the time this Permit was granted; or

(b)  because the information‘tade available to the Grantor by the Concessionaire for
the purposes of the~Ceoncessionaire’s application contained inaccuracies which
materially influgnced’ the decision to grant the Permit and the effects of the

Activity permiftedby this Document require more appropriate conditions.

The Concessionaire\s to be bound by every such variation.

GUARANTEE

If the' Grantor notifies the Concessionaire in writing that the Grantor requires this
Document to be guaranteed by a third party the following clauses are to apply.

Subject to clause 35.1 and in consideration of the Grantor entering into this Document at
the Guarantor’s request the Guarantor:

(a) guarantees payment of the Concession Fee and the performance by the
Concessionaire of the covenants in this Document; and

(b) indemnifies the Grantor against any loss the Grantor might suffer should the

Document be lawfully disclaimed or abandoned by any liquidator, receiver or
other persons.
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Subject to clause 35.1 the Guarantor covenants with the Grantor that:

(a) no release, delay, or other indulgence given by the Grantor to the Concessionaire
to the Concessionaire’s successors or assigns or any other thing whereby the
Guarantor would have been released had the Guarantor been merely a surety is to
release, prejudice, or affect the liability of the Guarantor as a Guarantor or as
indemnifer;

(b) as between the Guarantor and Grantor the Guarantor may, for all purpose$, be
treated as the Concessionaire and the Grantor is under no obligation,te-take
proceedings against the Concessionaire before taking proceedings against the
Guarantor;

(c) the guarantee is for the benefit of and may be enforced by any, pefson entitled for
the time being to receive the Concession Fee;

(d) any assignment of this Document and any Concession Ee¢ Review in accordance
with this Document are not to release the Guarantor from liability;

(e) should there be more than one Guarantor the lability of each Guarantor under this
Guarantee is to be joint and several.

CO-SITING

The Concessionaire must, if required by the Grantor, allow Co-Siting on the Site or the
Land immediately adjoining the Site-except when a Concessionaire demonstrates to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Grantor that the Co-Siting by a third party:

(a) would impact on the” ability of the Concessionaire to conduct its Concession
Activity; or

(b)  would resultvin a substantial change to the Concession Activity carried out by the
Concessionaire on the Site.

The Grantor will be entitled to require the Concessionaire to obtain at the
Conegssionaire’s expense a report prepared by an independent consultant acceptable to
the'Grantor confirming the matter specified in clause 36.1.

For the avoidance of doubt, a Co-Sitee permitted on the Site must enter into a separate
agreement with the Grantor in terms of which the Co-Sitee will be required to pay a fee to
the Grantor to conduct an Activity on the Site. This separate agreement will not contain
provisions that conflict with the Concessionaire’s rights and obligations in relation to the
Site.
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Signed by :
Area Manager, Bay of Islands Area Office

for and on behalf of

the Minister of Conservation
pursuant to a written delegation
in the presence of :

Witness (signature)

Witness (print name)

Occupation

Address

Signed by : CAPE BRETT WALKWAYSHETD

Director

Director

as Concessionaire
in the presence of

Witness (signatutre)

Witness (print name) :

OeCupation :

‘Address :
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
Concession Fee:

|

" I

whichever 1s the greater.

The above fee relates only to the tracks being tiséd across the reserves outlined in Item 1
above and excludes any fee that may be ¢hargeable on tracks that cross private land
adjacent.

Concession Fee Instalments: half §early in arrears

Concession Fee Payment Date: 20th April and 20th October

Penalty Interest Rate 2 per cent above the Westpac Trust indicator lending rate.
Concession Fee Review Date: 1 October 2009

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

(b) Concessionaire: Cape Brett Walkways Ltd, PO Box 149, Russell O\?~

154901 Cape Brett
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SCHEDULE 2

Nil
Naf

Community Service Contribution
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SCHEDULE 3

Special Conditions

That Grantor does not guarantee accommodation at the Cape Brett Hut. In this regard the
Concessionaire to make prior booking for accommodation required and to pay the hut fee
per person applying from time to time to the Field Centre at the Department of
Conservation, Russell. The present hut fee rate is $12.00 per night adults, $6.00 per night
children (15 years and under.) This fee is in addition to the fee outlined in Itepd 5
Schedule I.

That maximum number of bunks that the Concessionaire requires at afty one time is
limited to eight (8) and that the maximum consecutive nights in any-gne stay is limited to
four (4).

The Concessionaire shall submit to the Grantor no later than ‘5™ April and 5" October of
each year an Activity Form for the previous six months-d€tailing the number of clients on
each trip together with time duration on the Land, the ¥and visited on that trip and the
dates when the Land was visited. An Activity Formishall be submitted showing nil
activity if the Concession Activity is not undertakien in any particular year.

That the Concessionaire maintains a 1:10vmaximum guide ratio.

154901 Cape Brett



Report to: Area Manager, Bay of Islands Area Office

Low Impact, Non-notified Application for a Concession by:

Cape Brett Walkways Ltd

The purpose of this report is to consider the application as prescribed. by \the relevant
legislation and recommend whether the application should be approved.

O {"\3
The Law AN
The considerations under Part ITIB of the Conservation Act 1987 }or.Y ;'s"c'oncession include:
)
= Section 178, Contents of the application’. This is discgs/s'sd‘%ﬁ'section 2 of this report.

=
= Section 17T,’ Process for a complete application’. T is is not a direct consideration, but a part of the
act that enables the proper processing of this application. This includes a 17T(2) which requires the
Minister to decline an application within 20 wor i7s of it being deemed complete, if the “..application
does not comply or is inconsistent with t@a)wyisions of this Act or any other relevant conservation
management strategy or plan...” Sectioq.l ‘»7;1‘9 provides that before “granfing any permit or easement in
respect of a conservation area, the Ministermay, if; having regard to the effects of the permit or easement,
he or she considers it appropriate 10 give public notice of the intention to do so, give such notice; and

section 49 of this Act shall apply .a,ergﬁjmgly.

\ W
= Section 17U ‘Matters t(yﬁg co?sidered by the Minister’ - including but not limited to; the consideration
of the effects of the proj o'g‘l:(,sﬂU (1)(b)), measures that can be taken to avoid, remedy, or mitigate, any
adverse effects of the dc "vit? (s17U (1)(c)) and the purpose for which the land is held under the relevant
legislation (s17U(3)). This is discussed in section 3 of this report.

}
= Section I(F‘é"éi.éiationsth between concessions and conservation management strategies and plans’.
This is disqus§e'¢.iii section 4 of this report.

¢
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N
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1.0

Contents of the Application - Section 17S(1)

Inserted above is the completed application form.

2.0  Process for Complete Application - Section 17T(2)
An application is deemed complete once all information required under section 173
has been received.
Section 17T(2) requires the Minister to decline an application within 20 working days
of it being deemed complete, if the “...application does not comply or isdrnconsistent
with the provisions of this Act or any other relevant conservation, management
strategy or plan...”
Comment
This application is considered complete enough to allow ‘further consideration. A
determination of whether the application does not comply; or is inconsistent with the
provisions of this Act, or any other relevant conservation management strategy or plan
is provided in the conclusion of this report, afterthe considerations in section 17U, and
17W.
3.0 Matters for Consideration
Section 17U(1), (2) and (3)/requite the Minister to have regard to the following
matters:

31 Nature of Activity - Section 17U(1)(a)

154851

Guiding
Location Activity
Cape Brett Track - Deep Water Day Walks
Cave tg Cape Brett
Manawahuna Scenic Reserve Day Walks
Te Toroa Scenic Reserve Day Walks
Whangamumu Scenic Reserve Day Walks
Comment

The application is a renewal of the same activity undertaken under their previous
concession that expired on 30 September 2006.

The maximum number of persons per trip is eight and the duration of the trip is less
than four hours.

Activity Return for year from 1 October 05 to 30 September 06 shows a total of 98
persons taken.
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3.2

3.3

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

154851

Effects of Activity - Section 17U(1)(b) and any Measures to Avoid, Remedy, or
Mitigate Any Adverse Effects - Section 17U(1)(c)

The applicant has made an assessment of the effects of the proposed activity and
suggested mitigation measures (refer section H of the application form).

Comment
Adherence to standard conditions included in the contract will ensure the applicant
avoids, remedies or mitigates many of the effects of the proposed activity.

Term

The term applied for is for 5 (five) years from 1 October 2006 to 30 September 2011.
Comment

Appropriate for this type of activity in this location.

Any information Received by the Minister under Section 17Slor 17T of this Act -
Section 17U(1)(d)

Copies of the application and accompanying documentation. were forwarded to the
Bay of Islands Area Office. The Assessment Officer advises that the application has
been approved and informs that the Cape Brett Hut fegs ‘are now $12 per adult and $6
per child. The Assessment Officer also states that #wi also support the application with
requests that a non-exclusive clause be included,in-the conditions, that the 3B2 track
be maintained and to hear the stories relating to,Urupukapuka/Moturua Island.

Comments

Hut costs will be included as a special condition in the Permit. The Assessment
Officer recommended that the fion“exclusive clause need not be included in the
Permit, that the 3B2 track is not\the’Departments responsibility (but to ensure that the
safety issue has been includedn the Safety Plan) and to keep the sharing of stories in
the concession conditionss, (However, these stories relate to a separate concession
Cape Brett Walkways has.en Urupukapuka and Moturua Islands.)

Any Relevant Environmental Impact Assessment Including Audit, or Review -
Section 17U(1)(e)

The applicant_has provided an adequate environmental impact assessment for the
proposed,activity. No further information was considered necessary.

Public*Notification - Section 17U(1)(f)
Public notification is not required as this application is for a low impact activity and
for a term of five years or less.

Any Relevant Information Which May be Withheld Under the Official
Information Act 1982, or the Privacy Act 1993 - Section 17U(1)(g)

While any request for information under the Privacy Act, or the Official Information
Act would be considered on its merits and on a case by case basis, there is no relevant
information concerning this application which may be withheld under the Official
Information Act, or Privacy Act.
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3.8

Decline of Application - Section 17U(2)
This provides for the Minister to decline any application if the Minister considers that;

(a) The information available is insufficient or inadequate to enable him or her to
assess the effects (including the effects of any proposed methods to avoid, remedy, or
mitigate the adverse effects) of any activity, structure, or facility, or

(b) There are no adequate methods or no reasonable methods for remedying,
avoiding, or mitigating the adverse effects of the activity, structure, or facility.”

Comment
It is considered that there is sufficient information on the effects of this proposal to
enable the Minister to assess the effects of the proposed activity.

It is considered that the Department's standard contract conditions and special
conditions will allow the applicant to avoid, remedy, or mitigate the effects of the
application, if it is to be granted.

3.9 Purpose for Which the Land is Held - Section and 17U(3)
The areas under application are Land managed underithe Conservation Act 1987, the
National Parks Act 1980, and the Reserves Act 1977. The Minister may not grant a
concession if the proposed activity is contrary to the purpose for which the land is
held.
Reserves Act 1977
Reserves are managed by the Deépartment for the purpose of “providing for the
preservation and management for-the benefit and enjoyment of the public”, areas of
New Zealand possessing aiufmber of values or features as set out in Section 3(a) of
the Act.
Comment
The use of the Jand for the purposes of the proposed Guiding is not inconsistent with
the purpose for which that land is held.

4.0  Plapning Instruments

4.1 Relationship between Concessions and Conservation Management Strategies and

154851

Plans - Section 17W

Section 17W(1) Where a conservation management strategy, or conservation
management plan, has been established for a conservation area and the strategy, or
plan, provides for the issue of a concession, a concession shall not be granted in that
case unless the concession and its granting is consistent with the strategy, or plan.

Section 17W(2)(b) allows the Minister to grant a concession if the management plan
does not make provision for the activity, provided it complies with sections 17S, 17T
and 17U of the Conservation Act.
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Section 17W(3) of the Conservation Act states that “the Minister may decline any
application, whether, or not, it is in accordance with any relevant conservation
management strategy, or conservation management plan, if he or she considers that the
effects of the activity are such that that a review of the strategy, or plan, or the
preparation of a strategy, or plan is more appropriate.”

4.2 Northland Conservation Management Strategy
The Northland Conservation Management Strategy (CMS) will be relevant to the
areas under application.
Comment
This application is not inconsistent with the objectives of the CMS and where contract
conditions will ensure that the objectives detailed above will be met.

4.3 Conservation Management Plan
There is no such plan.

5.0 Conclusions and Special Conditions
The information provided by the applicant is (complete enough to allow further
consideration.
It is considered that the proposal compliesswith the provisions of Part IIIB of the
Conservation Act 1987, section 49 of.the, National Parks Act 1980 and section 59A of
the Reserves Act 1977.
In addition to the Department’s ‘standard concession conditions a number of special
conditions are considered appropriate (refer schedule III of the contract).

6.0 Applicant’s Comments

154851

The recomumiendation for this application has not warranted sending the draft report to
the appliCant, for comment.
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7.0 Recommendation

Pursuant to the written delegation by the Minister of Conservation it is recommended
that the Community Relations Manager:

1. Determine that, having regard to the effects of the proposed activity it is not
considered appropriate to give public notice of intention to grant this concessiont

2. Approve the grant of a five year concession to Cape Brett Walkways Ltd sdbject to
the standard and special conditions identified herein;

Marie Sheild
Community Relations Officer (Concessions)
Date:

Concessions Supervisor comments:

Date:

Recommendation: 1. Approved / Declined
2. Approved / Declined

Area Manager, Bay of Islands Area Office
Date: / /2007

154851




Department of Conservation
Te Papa Atawbai

File: PAC 01-06-27
19 April 2023

Cape Brett Walkways Ltd
PO Box 149
RUSSELL 0242

Re: Concession — Guided Walks

I enclose your cheque for which was payment for the Environmental
Monitoring Contribution which was charged in ertor.

Yours faithfully

9(2)(@)

for ConservatorsNorthland

DDI [SIPAIE))
EmailJ¢IE))

Northland Conservancy 436806
PO Box 842, 149-151 Bank Street, Whangarei, NZ
Telephone (09) 470-3300; Fax (09) 470-3301. DX AP24559





